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Financial Highlights and Summary
MERERME

RMB’000 AREFT
2011 2012 2013 2014
—E——F —ECF —E-=F —E-mE

Results E
Revenue WA 3,018,871 3,301,498 3,422,033 4,169,785 4,360,110
Gross profit EA 449,808 388,282 300,352 363,519 354,332
Operating profit Pl 303,392 258,796 141,361 67,969 120,274
Profit for the year ANEZFE 230,177 221,921 124,161 66,345 101,913
Profit attributable to 1% 3R A )

shareholders 228,990 219,647 122,198 62,725 98,877
Assets and Liabilities EERARE
Total assets BB E 2,013,379 2,441,812 3,005,589 2,845,196 2,822,720
Total liabilities BEE 357,242 575,512 1,026,783 831,359 739,637
Non-controlling interests FEHERS A R A =S 19,196 21,470 23,433 27,053 30,089
Shareholder’s equity & T 1,636,941 1,844,830 1,955,373 1,986,784 2,052,994
Major financial data FERKEE
Current ratio (Times) BN R (fF) 41 2.5 1.6 1.6 1.7
Quick ratio (Times) RENLE & (1) 85 2.2 1.2 1.3 1.4
Gearing — borrowings TERE R — &R

to total assets FRIAZREE 0.4% 0.3% 14.3% 10.0% 3.5%
Debtors turnover (Days) FEUER TR (RE) 37 35 45 35 28
Creditors turnover (Days)  FEBR A (RE0) 10 10 11 13 14
Inventories turnover (Days) 77 S#E#E (X&) 29 24 30 32 22
Cash conversion (Days) IR (RE) 56 49 67 54 36

Note: The above summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial

statements.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
China Starch Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Facing the continued slowdown of China’s economy, together with the
challenge of overcapacity, intense competition and rising manufacturing
cost, growth for cornstarch production has shrunk gradually over
the years. Many small cornstarch manufacturers without sufficient
competitiveness had been phased out from the market, while large
manufacturers could only survive through proactive moves such as
expanding product mix and improving product quality. On one hand, to
keep pace with the rapidly changing market, the Group had enhanced
its capacity and competitiveness by achieving large-scale production of
cornstarch. The Group also upgraded its machineries in both production
facilities in Shouguang and Linging in order to enhance its productivity
and efficiency through technology innovation and automation. On the
other hand, given China’s control policy on corn prices and the depressed
global corn prices due to abundant corn supplies from around the world,
domestic corn prices were significantly higher than global corn prices
and China’s exports of cornstarch products became less competitive,
which had negatively impacted the Group’s performance in the overseas
market.

This year, the Group’s consolidated revenue slightly increased by 4.6%
to approximately RMB4,360,110,000 (2014: RMB4,169,785,000).
However, gross profit slightly decreased by 2.5% from approximately
RMB363,519,000 to RMB354,332,000. In 2015, as we strategically
continued to focus our resources on boosting the sales volume of
cornstarch products, which represented 76.6% of the overall revenue of
the Group, in order to capture more market share, the gross profit margin
of our main product category had relatively decreased from 8.5% to 6.7%.
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Chairman’s Statement E£E#RsE

Despite another challenging year ahead is expected, our management
remains optimistic about the development of the cornstarch industry in
the long run, as the Chinese government is recently planning to adjust
the temporary reserve and price supporting policy for corns, loosen the
control over domestic corn prices, and allowing the market to determine
corn prices. Under this change, the gap between domestic and
international corn prices will be narrowed gradually, which in turn shall
provide domestic cornstarch manufacturers like our Group with greater
competitiveness in both the domestic and overseas markets. Meanwhile,
the Group remains committed to rapidly responding to changing market
conditions and sustaining our competitive advantages which shall equip
us with an edge over our rivals to capture more market share. Under
this proactive but prudent approach that we have adopted in operating
the business, we believe that our business performance will continue to
improve with long term sustainable growth for the benefit of the Group
and its shareholders as a whole.

Oh behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, business partners, management and employees for

their continuing support and dedication throughout the years.

Tian Qixiang
Chairman

Shouguang, the People’s Republic of China, 21 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN WK DN

Review

In year 2015, China’s economic slowdown had led to a widespread
pessimistic view on the economic outlook. Some established economic
indicators, such as gross domestic product and producer price index,
were reported the lowest amongst the decade. In addition, the recent
Shanghai and Shenzhen stock market indices and Renminbi exchange
rate fluctuations also pose warning signals of further deterioration in the
Chinese economy.

Our business involves purchasing of corn kernel on one hand and
manufacturing and sales of cornstarch and other related products
on the other hand in the mainland China. Corn kernel is a commodity
and cornstarch is a base-material which is widely applied in different
industries. Therefore, we are among one of the industries which first
felt the impact of China’s economic slowdown. Although the Chinese
government had launched a series of economic stimulation policies
to boost the economy, the rebound in the corn-refinery industry was
unsustainable and the general business environment in the corn-refinery
industry remained unsatisfactory. Both the market price and demand of
corn-refinery products lost their dynamic to grow.

To counter the decelerating economic growth rate and the challenge
of excessive production capacity in the China market, the Group has
applied a well-known Chinese proverb “to forge iron, one must be strong”
as our motto in the times of challenge. For instance, our new production
site in Shouguang has operated for a full financial year since its relocation
from the old plant site. We have achieved, among others, a lower overall
energy consumption rate per output in this new production site than that
in the old plant, and hence improved the efficiency of our production
model. The Group is committed to continue making effort in equipping
ourselves with advanced production knowhow and maintaining ourselves
on a sustainable growth track.

During the year under review, the Group’s production output and
equipment utilisation rate were maintained at a healthy level despite
the economic slowdown. Revenue of the Group had slightly increased
by about 4.6% to RMB4,360,110,000 (2014: RMB4,169,785,000).
Gross profit margin of the Group decreased from 8.7% to 8.1%. Profit
after taxation for the current financial year increased significantly from
RMB66,345,000 to RMB101,913,000, as the Group provided a provision
for impairment of approximately RMB86,437,000 for the previous financial
year ended 31 December 2014 in relation to the manufacturing plant,
machinery and other equipment that remained in the Group’s previous
production base in Shouguang subsequent to the relocation of our
production site during the second half of 2014 (the details of which were
announced by the Company on 13 February 2015). Basic earnings per
share of the Company was RMB0.0165 per share based on the weighted
average number of 5,995,892,000 ordinary shares (2014: RMB0.0105
per share based on the weighted average number of 5,994,109,000
ordinary shares).

18
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @51 :m & 24

Safety comes first

As one of the leading cornstarch manufacturers in China, the Group is
committed to deploying our resources to safety issues. In January 2015,
a new department, the Safety Supervision Department, was set up to
consolidate all safety measures amongst various departments of the
Group, and is led by Mr. Liu Xianggang, one of our executive Directors.
The responsibilities of the Safety Supervision Department include, but
are not limited to, formulating safety measures of the Group and safety
training for staff, and coordinating workplace safety management.
The Directors believe that the establishment of the Safety Supervision
Department will help our staff pay more attention to safety issues and
enhance our work safety policies in a professional manner.

Launch of new product

In August 2015, the Group started to launch a new product, D-lactic
acid, which is used in the production of pesticide and biodegradable
polymer. The current production scale of D-lactic acid is relatively small
as compared with our other products and the production is still in the
trial-run stage. The future development and investment plan of this new
product are still subject to various factors, such as customer’s feedback,
future price movement and potential competition. The Directors presently
believe that the market and prospects of this new product are promising
in the foreseeable future.

Research and development

The Chinese government has encouraged enterprises to develop new
materials which possess the characteristics of environmental-friendly and
energy-efficient. In echo with this State policy, the Group embraces the
potential of cornstarch as a raw material of many possible new materials,
and has been committed to deploying resources to the development
of cornstarch into new materials. D-lactic acid, our new product as
disclosed above, is one of the fruits of our efforts.
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During the year under review, the Directors re-assessed each business
segment and considered that the Group’s existing organisation structure
should be adapted to our continual business development and enable
our shareholders and potential investors to understand our business and
our positioning in the macro-production chain more easily. The original
business segments were made up of (1) products (cornstarch and
ancillary corn-refined products, lysine and related products, starch-based
sweetener, and modified starch) and (2) services (electricity and steam). As
the production and sale of electricity and steam had ceased as a result of
the relocation of our production plants in Shouguang, the original services
segment is not expected to be of continuing significance to the Group’s
business performance, and is accordingly aggregated with our products
segment for a simplified organisation structure. In addition, to reflect the
economic similarity and distinction of products in our product portfolio,
the original product segments are currently revised into two new main
business segments, namely (1) “Upstream products” and (2) “Fermented
and downstream products”. Upstream products represent cornstarch
and ancillary corn-refined products, which have a variety of application
potentials depending on our customers’ industry sectors. Fermented and
downstream products consist of lysine, starch-based sweetener, modified
starch and other fermented products derived from cornstarch, such as
D-lactic acid, the applications of which are pre-determined by customers
at the time of placing orders, as well as other services.

The following chart shows the contribution of (i) upstream products and (ii)
fermented and downstream products to the Group’s revenue in the past
two years:

2015
—E—-FF
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @51 :m & 24

Upstream products FHER
2014
—T—mEF
RMB’000
AREBFT
Revenue A 3,339,891 2,971,862
Gross profit EF 225,351 252,848
Gross profit margin EFIE 6.7% 8.5%

Revenue of upstream products increased by approximately 12.4% to
RMB3,339,891,000 (2014: RMB2,971,862,000). The increase in sales
was mainly attributable to an increase in sales volume of cornstarch
by approximately 31.6% to 1,017,194 tonnes (2014: 773,099 tonnes).
However, this positive factor was offset by the decrease in average
selling prices of cornstarch and other ancillary corn-refined products. The
average selling price of cornstarch was approximately RMB2,385 (2014:
RMB2,548) per tonne.

During the year under review, the international market prices of corn
kernel, sorghum, barley and other substitute goods of ancillary corn-
refined products decreased significantly and their international market
prices were lower than their Chinese market prices. In this regard,
domestic manufacturers were inclined to procure higher proportions of
such imported substitutes of ancillary corn-refined products. As a result
of this competition, the sales performance (selling price in particular) of
ancillary corn-refined products, such as corn gluten meal and corn germs,
was disappointing.

Gross profit margin of upstream products decreased from 8.5% to 6.7%
due to the drop in average selling price of cornstarch and ancillary corn-
refined products.

RMB/Tonne
AR/ W

3,000 —
2,900 —
2,800
2,700
2,600
2,500
2,400
2,300
2,200

2,100

EHFEROBA EFAE12.4% 2 A R#3,339,891,0007T
(ZZ—F - ARM2971,862,0007T) © $HEEE EFHTY
FTERRERBMEE EF431.6%21,017,194ME (=
T—VU4F - 773,0990F) o SR - AR IETAREEEEKE
B R EAD T RRMNTEIE R FHEE TRmEE -
ERBHNFEHEENAEMARE2,385L(ZF—M
F BEAR2,5487T) °

REBFE TR - 53R RERERXRNIAER
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R (LESEE)ARWNPE

EHERMENEHS.L% FEEST% » LTI E KR
B R FRFINTRIERNFIGEE TR -

2014 average selling price
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2015 average selling price
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Fermented and downstream products
The following table shows the revenue of the products in this business

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &3 11

BENTHEM
TREJNAEBDEEROKA

segment:

2014
—H4F
RMB’000
ARETTT
(restated)
(re&E75)

Revenue ON
- Lysine —FBa 551,288 669,745
— Starch-based sweetener — B R 258,493 253,025
- Modified starch — B 204,032 218,123
— Others —HAh 6,406 57,030
Total Est 1,020,219 1,197,923
Gross profit ER 128,981 110,671
Gross profit margin EFI=E 12.6% 9.2%

Fermented and downstream products consist of lysine, starch-based
sweetener, modified starch, and other fermented products such as
D-lactic acid, which are derived from cornstarch, as well as other
services. Revenue of this business segment for the year under review was
approximately RMB1,020,219,000 (2014: RMB1,197,923,000).

Sales performance of lysine was mainly affected by the excess production
capacity in China. Besides, the Chinese government stockpiled grain,
including corn kernel (a major raw material in the production of lysine), in
Northeast China during the second half of the year, leading to an increase
in corn kernel price and indirectly affected the production activities of
local lysine manufacturers in these regions. As our production plants
were not located in and our corn kernel were not sourced from those
affected regions, our production cost of lysine was not affected. Instead,
we benefited from the substantial decrease in corn kernel price in the
Shandong province, which resulted in a decrease in the production
cost and hence the selling price of lysine in the second half of the year.
During the year under review, the average selling price of lysine products
was approximately RMB5,818 (2014: RMB5,961) per tonne. Our lysine
products had thus regained competitive advantage in the international
market and sales volume of lysine products had substantially increased in
the second half of the year.

PR
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Sales performance of starch-based sweetener was affected by the
excessive supply in the domestic market. In order to avoid building up
excessive inventories, the Group had reviewed, on perpetual basis,
the market demand of different starch-based sweetener products and
adjusted our production schedule. During the year under review, the
average selling price of starch-based sweetener was approximately
RMB2,357 (2014: RMB2,526) per tonne.

Sales performance of modified starch was affected by various adverse
factors. One of those factors was the overseas paper-making industry’s
tendency of using less modified starch in their production, leading to a
continuous decrease in the demand of modified starch. Therefore, export
sales of modified starch decrease to 19.4% (2014: 49.4%) of total sales
of modified starch. During the year under review, the average selling price
of modified starch was approximately RMB3,292 (2014: RMB3,443) per
tonne.

Cost of sales

The major cost components of our cost of sales are corn kernel and
utilities expenses for the year under review. In the financial year 2014,
the major cost components of our cost of sales also included the cost of
coal. Our utilisation of coal declined as our electricity and steam business
segment was substantially reduced following the relocation of our
production plant.

Costs of sales increased by approximately 5.2% to RMB4,005,778,000
(2014: RMB3,806,266,000). Although the sales volume of the Group
increased, the cost of sales did not increase at the same pace. It is
because the cost of corn kernel, a major cost component, decreased
during the year under review. The average corn kernel price in 2015 was
approximately RMB1,867 (2014: RMB2,051) per tonne.

BMENHERRXBEATSHEBNATE - K%L
HEBRBERFE  AEECEHREAEERTRBRNEE
mE TSR R - WHAETEELRE - REEFE -
BN THEBNAETWARK2357T(ZF—N
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%EMW%&G%tﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁgli/ﬁxﬁkﬁﬂé =4
BUERPHOBEIGFE TR - SR EOEEHEER
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The Group did not enter into any forward contract to hedge the price
fluctuation of corn kernel. The Group makes purchases from the spot
market in accordance with its production schedule. Details of risk of
acquisition of corn kernel and relationship with our suppliers are set out
in the Environmental and Sustainability Report contained in this Annual
Report.

2015
—E-RHE

Dividends

In view of the global and mainland China’s economic uncertainty as well
as the increasing volatility of the cornstarch and its related markets, the
Board does not recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately RMB185,283,000.
The amount of distributable reserves included the Company’s share
premium of approximately RMB137,424,000, which may be distributed
provided that the Company would remain solvent after the distribution of
dividend.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 2,201 full time staff (2014:
2,241). Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group
were approximately RMB137,994,000 (2015: RMB130,225,000). The
Group considers the experience, responsibility, and performance of
the Directors and employees of the Group in order to determine their
respective remuneration packages. The Company has also adopted
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) with a primary
purpose of motivating our employees and other eligible persons entitled
under the Share Option Scheme to optimise their contributions to the
Group and to reward them for their contribution to the Group. In addition,
a remuneration committee is delegated by the Board to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management.

As at 31 December 2015, no share options have been granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

Details of the training programmes provided to staff for the year ended
31 December 2015 are set out in the Environmental and Sustainability
Report on pages 17 to 28.

Financial management and treasury policy

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management and
investment on uncommitted funds. Any unused fund is intended to be
placed on short term/fixed deposits with authorised financial institutions in
Hong Kong and/or the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Foreign currency exposure

The Directors do not consider the exposure to foreign exchange risk is
significant to the Group’s operation as the Group operated mainly in the
PRC and most of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities were
denominated in Renminbi. Foreign currencies were however received
from export sales. Such proceeds were subject to foreign exchange risk
before converting into Renminbi. The foreign currencies received from
export sales were converted into Renminbi upon receipt from overseas
customers. The Group manages foreign exchange risk by monitoring
the exchange rates closely instead of entering into any foreign exchange
hedging arrangement.
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Finance expenses g d:aa &“'
As a result of a decrease in both borrowings and interest rate during REBFERN @ ARERLRFIREETE iM% H

the year under review, finance expenses decreased significantly from  # A R ¥ #722,196,0007t X f& 5 4> & A R #9,919,000
approximately RMB22,196,000 to RMB9,919,000. The Group has 7t ° AEE T HRMMEMER L SV RHEBEER

regularly reviewed the financial needs for potential projects for developing BB BE R » W ESEME 2 HH R A AT - RE

new products and/or materials and monitors a suitable level of debts. The — EEFEE R - B FEH SE B (AEE P& B35 aE ) & B

interest cover during the year under review (which equals profit before B B AR L) 4 A15F(ZZ—M4E : 56F) -

income tax and financial expenses divided by financial expenses) was

approximately 15 times (2014: 5 times).

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure RBESE - UBERREARRE
As at 31 December 2015, the borrowings were approximately RMB99 R -Z—HAE+_-_F=+—H ' {EZHAEARYE
million (2014: RMB284 million). 99,000,00070(=Z—M4 : ARM284,000,0007T) °

The portfolio of borrowings and key financial ratios are summarised as & A MR F L BRI T

follows:
Secured and unsecured borrowings Milion (RMB) Banking facilities
BEARBERER BET (ARH) RITEE
100% 2,000 -

80% 1,600

60% 1,200
40% 800

20% 400

0% 0
2014 2015 2014 2015
—T-pmE —E-EHF —T—FE —E—HfF
Secured borrowings Utilised banking facilities
B mmmen W Cpmeaes
Unsecured borrowings Undrawn banking facilities
| |

IKIRER REEFRRITEE
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2014

—E—OF

Borrowings (RMB’000) ERAREF ) 99,432 284,432
Debtors turnover (days) FEURER A (K& 28 35
Creditors turnover (days) FEERRGRSE (RED 14 13
Inventories turnover (days) FEEE(KE) 22 32
Current ratio TREN L R 1.7 1.6
Quick ratio B R 1.4 1.3
Gearing ratio — borrowings to total assets 1B R — BRI B E E 3.5% 10.0%

The Directors are of the opinion that the working capital available to the
Group is sufficient for its present requirements. The Group’s borrowings,
cash and cash equivalents were mostly denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2015, the borrowings were approximately RMB99,432,000
(2014: RMB284,432,000) and carried interest at fixed rates. In addition,
most of the borrowings were with a maturity within one year. The
decrease in borrowings was mainly attributable to the repayment of
borrowings during the year.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits of approximately
RMB37,916,000 were pledged for securing bills payables and bank
facilities respectively.

Leasehold land and buildings with carrying amounts of RMB51,469,000
was pledged for securing bank facilities granted to a subsidiary of the
Group as at 31 December 2015.

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2015.

EERA AEENHANLEESRUENEREER
T REEZER BERRESEMRTIUAARE
HE-R-ZE-AF+-A=+—0 EROBARE
99,432,0007T (= Z —W 4 : AR¥284,432,0007T)
WIREEFEFTE o o - KBLOERBER—FRE
H o ERRO EBmRFERERZRITER

BEEERA

RZZE-—RAF+-A=+—0 RITIFFHARE
37,916,0007c . E# - DRIESBNREMRITEED
SR

RZE—HFE+-A=+—H EEFEARE
51,469,000t EE L REFE LR - EAAEE—

R B B 28 ) P R SR BT
KRG B

R-B-—RE+-A=+—0  ALELECAEAR
REME -

A ——
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Environmental and Sustainability Report

RERASEZRRERS

Business objective

Cornstarch is one of the most versatile, renewable and easily workable
resources which also has a wide range of application in various industries.
From the clothing we wear to the food and beverage served in the
restaurant, cornstarch is one of the most commonly used components
of tens of thousands of manufactured products nowadays. Thus, the
demand of our products, which mainly consist of cornstarch, lysine,
modified starch and starch-based sweeteners, are less exposed to the
adverse effects of the economic down cycle. Nevertheless, the slowdown
in the Chinese economic activities is expected to continue, which has
brought a short term risk on the profitability of our business. The Group’s
response to this risk is to make determined efforts on cost control and
cash flow management; in the meantime we have also implemented
appropriate measures to lower the risk of losing competitiveness and
flexibility in the market. In addition, the Group is also committed to
deploying more research and development resources in the aspect of
production technology and new products. In the long run, we maintain a
positive view on our business because of the following reasons:

1. The cornstarch consumption per capita in China is far less than
those in the developed countries in the world, which represents a
massive potential for market growth and promising prospects for

manufacturers of cornstarch and related products.

2. The application of cornstarch is a blue ocean because the potential
application of cornstarch is still being developed by scientists.

3. We are located in a major corn-belt and are close to customers.

4.  Cornstarch has low substitutability and are non-reusable.

EBER

FRBORET—EAERZ  UHERAEZKTH
BR - YETEITEEZER -BE25H - EXBRH
ERREEANERMBZ — AREEHUSHH
Em o ARMS EORRAEERAHEENSE - &
LAZEER FOKBAD RO MERS - Rt - EER TEMERME
m(EEREKERY - BAREK - M F KR KRN
FRERNEEFETIK - BEWU - PEEHEBR
BOBRERRERE  ERMEBNRNE I EEE
HiEE - REE AR - AN B R E MR AR
MREREBETIIE - BILER  BHATEZEQENE
i - MEEERTHRERT N REEEMER © 1o
AEENABDEEZBERETEERMNMAERTE
B T - RPIEEBORENSEESEREEL
RALT

1. PEERBRHOHADEREEEREEMEER
R BTRMBSAEERERED - UREARRYN KA
WEREERNRIR A -

2. HMERMDEFREABRMNEERS  TRERKR
MHEHBRZRKEIROALRE
3. BMREEERRE

WHEHRE

4. FARBHERLE  BTewEEEA -
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With our strong platform, we are positioned to capture the benefits of — BEEHLFIB AN FE - HFIDIEFERE - ILETBMEE
an increasing market share and are well prepared for further sustainable — EFHFr#sskMiFER » W E AEDE — F A FE R RIELT
growth. Even though we are facing the current tough global environment, — #8%& - #AKFIRRFAEME N2 HRB+HEE - BR
our objective remains unchanged, which is to be in a leading position ik AR EARLMB([HE ) ERKFMTEBEER
in the corn-refinery industry in the People’s Republic of China (the  BIZXWAREME - BiEZEHEEIZ  BEEREESH
“PRC”). To achieve this goal, the Directors and the Board’s executive  {TEREMKE 2 HiRAAEBRZ @RS EHEE
management teams are engaged in expanding our Group in various BEREAEXBHERBEREERNES  HEERE
aspects, including our production capacity of cornstarch and lysine & - B HBHEENERAETHEBEER - ARBI K
products, our product pipeline, our marketing force and our market — HIRFFFT M FIEEES ©

coverage. The Company is also committed to enhancing our research

and development capability.

OUTCOME

Create value to our

METHODS shareholders
R BRRAIEEE
Cost control

Strengthen the

H 1‘?& \ balance sheet

Become a market Research and
leader in the com- L development

refinery industry in ’ AR

China [

RBRE TR % T
Wi HEEE MRREERE
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Major Stakeholders to the Group

The Group’s sustainability is highly dependent on the relationship with its
stakeholders. Besides creating value to shareholders of the Company,
we also create value to our stakeholders beyond monetary terms. We
are committed to balancing financial performance with how we do
business, how we treat our people, how we live the values in our business
relationships and how we care for the community and environment which
we rely on. The following diagram shows the Group’s major stakeholder
groups which can participate in our decision-making process and
influence our business outcomes.

EMPLOYEES
8T

SUPPLIERS
R
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Employees

We recognise that the health and safety of our people come first as they
are key to our long-term success. This is core to us and to every aspect
of our business. We believe the achievement of positive workplace
relations is mutually beneficial to the Group and our employees as
workplace efficiency is achieved when labour relationships allow for a
culture of continuous improvement and acceptance of change. Thus, we
encourage communication at all levels. Apart from regular meetings with
the representative of the Group’s labour union, we also obtain opinions
from and provide feedbacks within our workgroups in order to ensure
continual improvement aimed at the work environment and other staff-
related matters. To understand, manage and, where possible, minimise
occupational injuries or illnesses in our business is equally important.
We have appropriate controls in place and provide our people with
appropriate training. On-the-job trainings related to individual development
are also provided to our people to enhance skills and capabilities.

In January 2015, the Company set up a new department, Safety
Supervision Department, which aimed at handling all safety related
matters. In May 2015, the Safety Supervision Department issued a
production safety guidebook that addressed production safety and safety
issues encountered by staff. The content of this guidebook included,
but not limited to, safe use of chemicals, avoidance of dust explosion,
safety work in confined space, factory traffic rules, and protection from
occupational diseases.

In addition, the Safety and Supervision Department had provided the
following training events and topics to our employees during the year:

March 2015 — Use of hazardous chemicals and special equipment
May 2015 — Workplace safety and protection technique

June 2015 - Designated as “Safe-production Month”

August 2015 - Fire prevention

October 2015 — Laws and regulations on workplace safety
December 2015 — Traffic safety

Suppliers

We have developed trust with our suppliers. We, as a leading cornstarch
manufacturer, play an important role in the procurement of corn kernel
in Shouguang and Linging districts, which are located in Shandong
province. Our suppliers mainly consist of farmers, cooperatives, agents
and traders. We provide our corn kernel offer price to our suppliers by
using mobile technology. While our procurement is carried out on a 24/7
basis, we propose corn kernel offer prices to our suppliers through mobile
technology to increase efficiency. We believe that our suppliers will deliver
the best corn kernel to us at their first priority because our offer prices
are transparent and we show commitment to purchase at our initial offer
prices. We also adopt a tender policy and procedure for choosing service
providers and subcontractors in a fair and transparent manner.
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Customers

Product safety is a great issue as we produce raw materials for our
customers. Our quality assurance programme ensures that our product
standards can be identified precisely in accordance with the Chinese
national standards issued by The Standardization Administration of the
PRC. In addition, we also work closely with our customers to develop our
order book and provide the required products at the right time.

Governments

One of our major stakeholders is government authorities. The Group
shows its commitment to improve production efficiency by using
modernised production facilities and deploying resources in the
development of production knowhow. The payback of these investments
would not be within a short time. To ensure that the development
direction is on the right way with long-term government support, we
maintain good working relationship with the municipal governments.
In addition, we have worked closely with local governments, other
government bureaus, such as Environmental Protection Bureau and Tax
Bureau. We expect that our continuous commitments and support to the
government authorities would assist them in better understanding and
responding to our industry needs.

Shareholders

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to shareholders’
communications, with the objective of ensuring the availability of
balanced and understandable information and each of the shareholders
are treated equally. We encourage shareholders and potential investors
read the Company’s corporate communication. It is very important that
shareholders share our view on the business objectives of the Group and
the strategy adopted in the development of our business.

Our key performance indicators (each a “KPI”) enable us to measure our
financial and operational performance that is critical to our success in the
industry.
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Indicator

R

Workplace safety
THtER2

Environmental protection
BERE

Development and training
MEREN

Relevance to Workplace safety is the first priority in

We are committed to upholding a work- ~ We are a responsible user of natural

strategy all of our production sites. We have safe culture. The provision of suitable resources. We are committed to meeting
undertaken a zero-tolerance policy on training to our employees can protect the environmental standards, rules and
accidents during production. them from occupational injuries and regulations.
increase production efficiency.

B AEEY IEbEZ2REMAMBLEERE HMBEOISBZ2IENONL-B BMREAEANKRERERERE-
BEZN R -BAMUAENEE REERHAERITRERZLEY BMANETEERREE BIUR
EENRKRIZITREE - BEESE VYARALEENG- &4l

Performance e Yo of ranig b monin Please refer to the paragraph headed “Use

ES] s 25 . of Resources” on page 27 for detalils.

- FHBE2MBT B ERER R -
03
0.2
0.1
0.0 e
The Group provides continuous Our human resources department is
commitment on improving work safety. responsible for providing trainings to our
staff and assessing their training outcomes,
which form one of the components of their
overall performance review.
AEETHBNRALERZS ANERHFIGEME TREEI - ARET
ARENFNRR - L HREBRRTZN
72% °
Our Safety Supervision Department is
committed to enhancing work safety
standards for our staff.
BMNZ2EERHBNAEIRRBER
FKF -

Definition Lost Time Injury (“LTI") is an occupational  The average number of training hours per
injury sustained by an employee for employee is calculated as the total internal
which the employee misses one or more  training hours to different employee
scheduled workdays after the day of the  categories.
injury. LTl rate is the number of LTI within
a financial year relative to the total number
of hours worked in the same financial
year. LTl rate is normalised to 100,000
worked hours.

Bs BAIKIB(EAXIRIBNA BSEEENTHRIEHIRAIE

BEERIGMEXGERRBLA- BEINERUTREEEBRIE -
REUTEEIEBNBER-BX
IRIGERRIBREENELRT
BRIGHEHERNA-FREEN
IRBY X -BRIRIHEX
1% % 7 £100,000 & T B -

Related Employees Employees Suppliers, Government

stakeholders
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Indicator Product responsibility Gearing ratio Total shareholder return (“TSR”)

iR EmEE ERL X B RE R =E

Principle Our products can be reproduced A suitable level of debt can The aim of our strategy is to
for animal feeds or other products  increase the capital efficiency and ~ maximise total shareholder return.
for human intake. The maintenance the effectiveness of cash flow
of high product quality is the only ~ management. We will monitor our
key to customers’ loyalty. gearing ratio amongst the peers.

g BMWERAUNIEXSY HEEBURAEAEIZE HEMAOEBREIERRTESZK
MBI HEABERRANAEME ReAEENKRB-BEMER MAEDK-

Mo ERBEF, RBEMS BRENESLIXEZRBESH
EERWE—HE- BB L & o

Performance % e % "

% R 0.16 — 18— 0
014~
012~ i
0.10 0.09 58
0.08 [~ 0.07 8.2
0.06 — 1ol
0.04 —

0.02 —
0% 2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015 o 2013 22’413 2015
—®-=¢ -—T-NF =—%-HF —F-=f —T-NF —®-HF == —F-mF =%-1F
The product quality complaints The Group is keen to maintain a The Company s share price
were not related to product recalls  suitable level of debt in order to is affected by various factors,
or food poisoning in the past three meet its operating commitments, such as volatility of capital
years. such as purchase of raw materials. market, economic atmosphere
and investors’ expectation on
commodity prices. We are keen to
maintain a suitable dividend payout
ratio which can balance our future
funding requirement and return to
shareholders.
BEZFHNEREERFE XEERIREFEENE A2IREXZZERZTE
EmARBNRMmPEER- BRKF UAREESREN NEAMSED KLEIARAR
BERMHE) - REEHMREBNESR R
MEBEH#FAERRESFXK
&k%@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ FEma
Ik B }; °©

Definition Complaint ratio is calculated as Gearing ratio is calculated as the TSR combines share price
the quantity of product which is borrowings to total assets. appreciation and dividends paid to
subject to quality issue to the total show the total return to shareholders.
quantity of product sold in the
reporting period.

B& BHFREDRBEHRNHBEE E&mfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁuéﬁ BREBREBREREAER
ERENERBERURE REE EATRE - AR &R R
EEMMBEGE- ) 48 [B] 3

Related Customers, Government Shareholders Shareholders

stakeholders
HERFGE P B fi% & [
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for monitoring the
business risks and formulating plans to mitigate potential risks and
uncertainties that materially affect the business of the Group. The
following risks and uncertainties may occur individually or simultaneously.
There may be additional risks unknown and other risks which we
currently believe to be immaterial, but turn out to be material to our
Group. If the management team identifies any other risk to be material,

EXgAAEREBRRNHIFIETE - #EILREHARE
BEBHEKEAFENEERR R THAREZE - TR
B R AR R AT AL (A B IR SR A KR - IRATREAF A
HMBRBEXETK  BEREHAEEENEATE
B R AR SMNEL R S EL AR o fin B TR ] B 3 R A (] LA
HRABREEANAR  EEEKEREANEESE
¥ W AEENEERFERETRERERE

the management team will report such risk to the Board and consider to
implement a mitigation plan when appropriate.

The following risks and uncertainties are considered as material that may
adversely affect the business and financial position of the Group.

Operational risks
& E R b

Factor

FE

THRERETHBREERSBZEEKN  AREHAE
B 0 275 R AU B R TR 2

Nature

HE

Commodity price is unpredictable.

A ERRTA TR -

Commodity price is volatile and strongly affected by the PRC economic environment. It is
a characteristic that the domestic corn kernel market is run by numerous individuals which
are relatively small and without a dominant position. It is the Group’s policy to manage

the commodity price risk by monitoring the corn kernel price on a daily basis instead of
entering into any forward contract.

FRERREBEEE ABRRASIXHTBELERRZE2 -BRERNTSENER
THEHEBPLES BRENREEERN TEFEWGT - AEEEES
mEERBNXBRETAERTEARANER MIAEITLAMNEREGL -

The PRC government’s policies
may affect the Group’s operation
and expansion plans.

]

FEIBRFHR A EAREN
R R ETEATE o

Some production projects may or may not be recommended by the PRC government
because of administrative issues or public interest issues. The Group will launch a feasibility
study and discuss any potential project with the government before launching those
relevant project. In addition, our management team, on behalf of the Group, plays an active
role in China Starch Industry Association, who can represent our peers to provide opinions
and feedback to government agencies.

ERTBRERRBEAARMNEHE KRELAEBEBTRESIHTRISFE
PERFEE AEEERTEMNEERAN B EAERERETAIT
MRS BEBFTwm oo BMNOERERRERAEEEFBRRH T
XmehEEERAC RARKAENRAHBERRER RIFLOE-

The Chinese economy is
generally a planned economy, in
which periodic economic plans
and measures are promulgated
and implemented by the PRC
government.

PEISEREE FRETEIRE - R
BB & TE BRI B AT A B A
EPSE

The Group’s business is conducted in the PRC and our products are sold mostly in the
PRC. As such, our operations, financial results and future prospects are subject to, to a
material extent, the economic, social and political developments of the PRC.

AEENEFETEET MEMOERARNBHRFE L E - B 3
MEE BBEEERAKRISRABZEIPENEE HeRBAERMTZE-
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Operational risks
& E R b
Factor

ESJE S

Nature

tE

Increased rules and regulations
on environmental related matter
may adversely affect the Group’s
cost of operation.

B3R 35 % B A B 0 AR R R AR 113
MT%Q§$EIWWEW$L
I ESillZ

It is a trend that environment related rules and regulations will be more stringent year by
year. Evolving standards, rules and regulations could result in increased costs, regulatory
actions, or in extreme cases, litigation or plant closure.

EHANRARENBERBEECRAEMB - BE  RA NG TEEE -
BEAEMKSIBERETES MESRRBERT  EGIHFANMEBEH -

ERIR
g

The success of the Group
is highly dependent on the
continued services of the
management.
REBEHKINIEFEREERAE
SERMHARTS o

Our historical success is attributable, to a large extent, to the in-depth industry knowledge
and experience of our executives and senior management. Nonetheless, there is no
assurance that we will be able to retain or recruit qualified and experienced staff to support
our existing operation as well as the business expansion or development of new products.
BMBENKNRABEE LERRATAERSREEBHITENRAR
BLEERBR - GEOL RMEZRESEHRBABEFTAERETLER
MABXERBEEBEFEREBERIANERORE I E-

Strategic risks
TRE [ Fx
Factor

A=

Nature

HE

The Group’s expansion plan or
development of new products
may be unsuccessful.

REE ] pe BOAK Y e R R ET
SIS FEIMER

Research and development process takes long periods of time. We cannot guarantee

the success of new product upon implementation or the project execution may not be
executed as planned, both of which may have negative impact on the Group’s profitability
MERFAEEFTERNAETHBRAE RMEBEZRIFTE DN ELKER
B ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁ%“%ﬁﬁ mELE ﬁ$%lm§ﬂmﬁm
D4 ‘/E\ [i8-2 E °

The Group may not successfully
execute divestments or
acquisitions.

$EITEﬁ£ﬂW@ﬁ&§&
HETTUEE -

All business combinations, acquisitions or formation of joint ventures entail a number of
risks. Significant write-off of assets, restructuring charges or unanticipated costs and
liabilities would affect the Group’s financial performance. In addition, the Group may be
liable for past acts, commitments, omissions or liabilities pertaining to the acquiree, which
are unforeseen or greater than anticipated.

MEXBKaH WEIKIaLCEOFEETRAR REMAEERBE
EHBMHEAKS ﬁﬁ%ﬁK&E%@ﬁKE@mW%%ﬁLWWE&MM
REBAEFTHERKBESIAENBEETS Am LA EBEAEREE

R EBREHMNET-
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Financial risks
B 7 R B

Factor

ESJE =

Nature

HE

The Group’s working capital
may be adversely affected by the
economic environment.

KERENSHAEERNEEE
TERTFFE o

The economic environment will affect the repayment ability of our customers and have
negative impact on our cash flow cycle. If the Group is required to raise additional funds
through bank borrowings and/or the debt markets, it will inevitably incur additional finance
costs and result in a higher gearing ratio.
KERRSUZELEEPMNERE N AEMEREeAENENEETZE -MA
SEFZEARTERR HNBEEMBEEEINES BEARREELEIH
BMAKAE SEREELEHA-

The cost of operation may
still be higher than expected
upon completion of technology
upgrade projects.
BT RIAR Feikig - LEK
KA RE =R TEER o

We cannot guarantee that a cost reduction programme can be successfully implemented
as planned. New technology or production knowhow may not be tested amongst the
peers and the final costs of production are subject to various factors at the time of
implementation.
BPEERE
KRR A

BIURAC ANTH B AT IR BRI R E -
REREERAARTZENT

BBy s 4 B B P A A R
BoZEEE-
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The Group understands that our business has an impact on the
environment and we recognise the importance of sound environmental
management practices and sustainable business operations. We are
committed to meeting all environmental standards and policies as set by
government. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between
cost of production on one hand, and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions
and sewage disposal on the other hand. Our business is both energy and
water intensive, the Group has its own facilities to reduce GHG emissions
and treat sewage before disposal to city sewage network. A perpetual
monitoring system on sewage disposal is reported to local environmental
protection bureau and open to public inspection. In order to protect
our environment and reduce the cost of production, we use methane
generated from sewage treatment to produce steam for internal use.

Other than corn kernel, electricity and water are the other two major costs
amongst the costs of production. The electricity we used is generated
from coal. Although the Group does not have any option to choose the
source for the production of energy, we spend much effort to improve
production efficiency and, in return, we can reduce the GHG intensity
indirectly. Water is a vital resource for our planet. It is used to grow crops,
feed animals and people, generate electricity and steam, and produce our
products. We are committed to using water responsibly. As a result of full
utilisation of water recycling facilities in the new Shouguang production
plant for the year under review, the percentage of recycled water used
during production increased to approximately 46%.

The followings are the statistics for the usage of coal and fresh water,
GHG emissions and water discharged in the past three years:
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AEERBRMANRBHRFEN —EFE  LRAR
HRRFEEERLAIHENEB2ENERMT - T
HOETBEAHENMERFREEREE - HANR
EREAEEERE B EREBE IS /KEERT EE
BYE -  BANEBRIEAARELRLRRK - A%E
B AR AR E RS KB A TS K84
AIETTRE - ARBCDA - E2RNEEFNARERS
KR - WA RRERBMEAHEEE - XRARTA
BALERN - BRERFREEEERAE - RAIFIARE
IB)5/KESPTE M R A 2T EBEE A -

B ERKISN - BAFMRAZEEERSS BIMAEEK
Ao BFERARELENE - BEAEE TR ER
RfRAERR  HPERNRELEENS - KMz
MR ERBIREE - KEMHNEZEIR © KA
REHRR  fBYRAERE  BEREEE T UK
HERMNER - ZFAGELAEETHREERRK -
RPN AF R EERE AR ERRENEEFEAE
EEA CESHMTERNBERBRKLY EAED
46% °©

NTRBE=ZFOELRKAE  BEREIEHIEIFK
PRRATET B

KPI FERRER 2014 2013
—E-pmE —B-=%

Resources used: V. i:h-v

Coal (tonne) 7 (W) - 117,952 183,452

Fresh water (in cubic metre) R IK(Z A K) 966,553 1,318,507 1,336,024

GHG emissions BERBEHK

(in tonne of CO, equivalent)': (FEE=-SGHEHK:

Scope 12 & E 12 679 249,978 447,118

Scope 23 & [& 28 606,595 447,324 259,628

Total GHG emissions* B E R BB P 607,274 590,342 599,867

GHG emission intensity indexs BE R BB 0RE R B 90 100 125

Water discharged (in cubic metre): K B £ (v 5 K) :

Waste water to recycled water BEKEAL B EIR B B K 827,216 520,304 434,260

Waste water to sewage network BE R S5 K 48 48 H9 BE K 1,645,757 1,592,844 1,442,847

The above KPI data have neither been audited nor verified.

bt RRBISR WAL RIL L -
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Notes:

The methodology used for the determination of emissions is based on various
documents, such as 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories, and the 2010 Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power
Grids in China issued by the Department of Climate Change and IPCC Fourth
Assessment Report.

Scope 1 emissions represent the emissions from combustion of fuels at
stationary sources to generate electricity, steam, or heat which are owned
or controlled by the Group and transportation emissions from owned or
operated vehicles.

Scope 2 emissions are emissions from consumption of purchased electricity,
steam and heat.

Total GHG emissions are direct emissions, plus emissions from the net
change of purchasing and selling of electricity and steam.

GHG emission intensity index is calculated as the GHG emissions from
physical products produced in the reporting period relative to the intensity in
the 2014 base year (set to 100).

G

BIEHE A AR SE TS X AR - M=
AEIPCORMFBERRA B MM - BRAREHRLAY
(= —F R EE S EAEERHETIRIPCCEM
WA -

H6E 1 FERHE AN S B A SR R 9 B DS AR AR EHEA
)i%%éf%i CHEEFRTRANFHFR - RS SIRIEER
B

HEHMAFRBABEES - FTRBRDHPR

BRERBHNEBREERIN  SNKERERHEEEN
VBB A TR ©

R R AP PRs R BRI S B P A B A R P BEAR
FURERREE  AAE T MREEFNERE(REH100)
FHE o
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
understands maintaining high corporate governance standard is
crucial to success in the future. The Board and its dedicated executive
management teams always demonstrate its commitment in upholding
sound internal control standard, accountability and integrity to the
shareholders and stakeholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the
year under review and has applied the principles as laid down with the
aim of achieving a high level of governance.

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the “Dealing
Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. The Dealing Code applies to all Directors and to all
employees who are informed that they are subject to its provisions. The
Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all the Directors
confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out in the
Dealing Code throughout the year under review.

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible for strategic
leadership, approving annual budget, formulating business plans and long
term strategy, evaluating the performance of the Group and supervising
the management. The Board is also responsible for the integrity of
financial information and the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The Board has, with the assistance of the internal
audit department and its Audit Committee, conducted a review on the
Group’s internal control system including the adequacy of the resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and the relevant training programmes
and budget. In addition, during the year under review the Board has
also recognised and carried out its function of corporate governance
in accordance with the CG Code, including developing, reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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To facilitate effective management, the Board has delegated certain
functions to various Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Each
of these Board committees operates under their respective written
terms of reference on terms no less exacting than the code provisions.
Suggestions and conclusions of the Board committees will be reported to
the Board in its subsequent meeting.

In addition, the Board also delegates the day-to-day operational
responsibilities to the executive management teams under the leadership
of the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer, working with
the executive management teams, is responsible for the operations and
business development of the Group.

Four regular Board meetings are scheduled one year in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance by Directors. Additional Board meetings
are convened as and when required.

The attendance record of the Directors at the 2015 annual general
meeting of our Company held on 20 May 2015 (the “2015 AGM”), Board
meetings and Board committee meetings held in 2015 are as follows:

ROEANER BEFESETRERTITRANESS
ZBg WEZRZRS HMZEeRR2ZEE - %
EXEEZReHKBESENERREREEE - BN
VARTFAGNER - REFSZEGENERNES
BERT  MEFSERAEZARER -

SN - EEG TR ETRE R ERETREENEET
BESENATEE - TREHERTREEEGARE
BEAKENZENEBER -

EEeRP - FAURFHEACHESTSSZNERM
K OBEUBRERSEFLREFSSINLE - MEF
2 NEAREMEEEEH -

EEER T -AFAA-TARTNARATREBE
Rg([ZT-—RFRRBAFAE])  —FT-0AFETH
EXgeR NEFERRERRNHFECHEOT

Executive Directors:

HiTES:

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) 4/4 1/1
REREE(FE)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 1/1
SR (TEAER)

Mr. Liu Xianggang 4/4 11
e

Mr. Yu Yingquan 4/4 11
THEREE

Independent non-executive Directors:

BYFHTES:

Mr. Chen Zhijun 4/4 11
Mr. Sun Mingdao 4/4 11
FRRGLE

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken 3/4 11

N/A 1/1 1 J
N/A N/A N/A J
N/A N/A N/A J
N/A N/A N/A J
2/2 1 11 x
2/2 1/1 1 J
2/2 1 11 x*

The Chairman of our Board, as well as the duly appointed delegate of the
chairman of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee attended and were available to answer questions at
the 2015 AGM.

* EEQIFEMEEREZRE FHREGNRREEREESR
BNEREEARENRREELRE T AFERBEFA
€ WAE EMERR -
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There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship(s)) among the Directors and in particular,
between Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) and Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive
Officer). The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this Annual Report.

During the year under review, all Directors had participated in continuous
professional development (the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills by attending seminars or training courses and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business and directors’
duties and responsibilities. In addition, in order to allow the Directors to
understand the latest development of regulatory and compliance issues,
they were also provided with market news and regulatory updates from
time to time.

The type of training received by each Director during the year under
review is summarised as follows:
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BEE7R(LERBEFAE(ZR) Bt FELLE (TR
BE) 2B BEECABEE(RENT - 255 - KEIEM
BEXR/HBEBR)  c EENEEFBEREREAFRIEER
BREEASBN—F -

REBEE  2REECERB2HEARAXBRES
BTSN B AEA AR A 2 IR IIRIZ R B EARR A K
EREEERR([FETERR])  KMBEREENA
BEREEE o UEIN > ARR TR RABEFREETSHEER
BHNEEEM SRESTHEERAREENENH
B o

BEEPOBEFEERRZ ZEIERIEMNT

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) A, B
Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer) A, B
Mr. Liu Xianggang A B
Mr. Yu Yingguan A B
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Zhijun A B
Mr. Sun Mingdao A B
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken A B

A:  attending briefings/seminars/forums/workshops/conferences relating to
directors’ duties or other relevant topics

B: reading materials, such as newspapers, journals, business updates and
regulatory updates relating to business, economy or directors’ duties

YITES

HREREE(ERE) A B
e E A (fTERAREL) A, B
21 Mk E AB
FHRREEE A B
BYEPITES :

BRAEE R E A B
FRRE A A B
REELE A B

A HEAEESHRERERARIAEMNERE
&/ R TIEY BN

B MBEEXER  CEVIAEERBAEBRNERE - BT X
BERREEENE
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The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and
not performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Qixiang holds the position
of the Chairman, primarily responsible for strategic positioning. Mr. Gao
Shijun serves as the Chief Executive Officer, primarily responsible for the
operations and business development of the Group.

Mr. Leung Siu Hong is a full-time employee and has been appointed as
the company secretary of the Company since February 2008. He also
serves as the secretary of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and other board committees as
organised by the Board from time to time. Mr. Leung is responsible for
advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer on governance matters, for example, to ensure Board procedures
and applicable laws and regulations are followed.

Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountant.
Mr. Leung is also a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

During the year under review, Mr. Leung took no less than 15 hours
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

TEETBREHNACHERD - AWIEA— ARKFR
F-HEFAERIIFE B T2AEEHELEE -5
HEEEEETRAR B TZ28EKENKENE
BER

ZRERERERES BTN\ F_AREZER
AABREMWE - RITEETERZES  REZES
FHNERESREEE THRUNAMEZERE W
EoRAEEBBESBERERFITREHMESZRM
BEREREEMNER  NIERESSREF LEMER
NOEMESELE

REERBRGHNAGREBRFF AR SR ZH
EREE  MARBFNHWERTRAEAGHEFRR

AMELAENEREGS -

REEFE  RELEEI TP/ ERE
FHECRRBE R A3,

FIALR
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Pursuant to the articles of the Company (the “Articles”), every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that general meeting.

Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of one year
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles. Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may
affect his independence and must provide an annual confirmation of his
independence to the Company.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process, financial controls, internal
control and risk management system of the Group and to provide
recommendations and advice to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor as well as their terms of
appointment.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently consists of all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Zhijun, Mr. Sun
Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
results and the financial reports and internal control measures with the
management, discussed the annual audit issues with the external auditor
and made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor.

The major function of the Remuneration Committee is to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
remuneration structure for all Directors.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently consists of all
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Zhijun, Mr. Sun
Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, and the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
and made recommendation on the remuneration, including discretionary
bonus, of the Directors based on, among others, their performance, and
the remuneration policies of the Group.

The major functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure and composition of the Board, to implement and review the
policy on Board diversity, to review and provide recommendations on the
terms of Director’s service contract, and to assess the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently consists of all
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Zhijun, Mr. Sun
Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken and the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee made
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors at the 2015
AGM with reference to our policy on Board diversity (which considers,
among others, their educational background, professional knowledge,
industry experience and skills), reviewed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and evaluated the structure and
composition of the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, culture, race, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and independence. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity of the Board.

REBEE  FHZESREBE(ETRB)EZNRAR
BIEFH - WERMASEOZ MRS - It L EE
REE -

REZBENIZEVEABRNEFTSNRBRAK - 9
TEhBTNEEEREZTTIERE  BHERREERES
HDERIEL 2 - YRMA B IFRITE RSB -

BAl ARAREZZEGNEBHEERBYIFNTE
= FAREEERL  ARLELE  RFEEXRLEREER
BEEAEFEL  REERRELZEFIE -

REBEE  REZBEC2EEFERBZT(LER
(BRZR(ATEE)REHEES ERMH  TEL
BERE) AR _E-RFRREFAGLEEEERR
EEgEHREE BEBUIERTEENELMN UK
FHAEFEEORE RAMK

REPIHENDEER ARARESESEEARS
TEAXFHHEERNERERRESTHEZROBR
TR -ARAAERTEFTEREMAAE  SZES
HZREEFEXEZLLE  BREIRRMUR - Fic
Xie - Bk BHEER  BELR - R ABRET
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The following graph provides an analysis on the composition of the Board
and our current progress in achieving Board diversity:
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards, using and applying consistently suitable
accounting policies, and making reasonable and prudent judgement and
estimates. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may affect the business of the Company or cast
doubts on its ability to continue as a going concern.

The financial information and plans were discussed in the regular Board
meetings. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for explaining the
latest business development and financial projections to the Directors.

The work scope and responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 49 to 50. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fee
payable to the external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services is
set out below:

Audit:
Tax representative service:

HK$1,466,900
HK$33,100

BEECHR NEARERBEERVBRS LI REE
B ERREREEM QT RZESHIBHRE
W EERERRERESNSTTBERARMERAENE
E B R bE - EFREESRBEREMEKRTHL
EMRBAAREZEARTNEBLEFBELZME
5 o

EEehaEH et IR BEMNGE  EFETF
BERREERBENNERRREMBGE -

ARR) 2 SNEZ BN B K RUOGE B AT R E ST 2 TIEE
ERBEHNEI9E0A 2 BYREMBE - BE-F
—AFET-A=+t—BILFE  AEZLFEZRGE
TN BETRO B RESIENT

1,466,900/ 7T
33,100/ 7T

B
BISHR R IR -
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The Board is ultimately responsible for the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group. The management of the Group has
dedicated to improving the efficiency of accounting and financial
reporting. During the year under review, the Board, through the internal
audit department, has performed internal control review on major
operations of the Group. The scope of review is determined by the Board
and the Audit Committee. The results, with potential control, operational,
compliance and financial impact, are discussed in the Board meeting. The
Group is not aware of any material internal control weaknesses affecting
its overall operation.

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, shareholder(s) holding not
less than one tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company can
convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) by depositing the
requisition in writing to the Directors or the Company Secretary for the
purpose of requiring the EGM. The requisition in writing should be sent to
the Company’s office at Suite 3312, Tower 1, Times Square, 1 Matheson
Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The same procedure also applies to
any proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The Board will
review shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries
and suggestions by shareholders can be sent in writing to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the above address or by email
(ir@chinastarch.com.hk).

In case of shareholding enquires, shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, via its website at
www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com, or dial
its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public counter at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The Company recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and
will not disclose shareholders’ information without their consent, unless
required by law.

The Company did not make any changes to its constitutional document
during the year under review.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRGTE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of cornstarch, lysine, starch-based sweetener, modified starch and
ancillary corn-based and corn-refined products. Details of the principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue and gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 was approximately RMB4,360,110,000 and RMB354,332,000
respectively. Profit after taxation was approximately RMB101,913,000.
During the year under review, the Group has successfully developed a
new product, D-lactic acid, by using cornstarch. This new product can
be used in the production of pesticide and biodegradable polymer. Being
committed to enhancing production safety standards, we also set up the
Safety Supervision Department, a new department designated to monitor
all safety-related issues of the Group. In addition, the management
has re-assessed the Group’s business segments and changed its
organisation structure to better reflect our business nature and our
positioning in the macro-production chain. Further details on the above
latest developments, as well as a comprehensive review of business
operations, financial performance, and prospects of the Group are set out
in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 16.

The Group is also committed to complying with all environmental policies
and other relevant laws and regulations related to its business operating
environment. In addition, the Group also has an internal laboratory to
monitor the quality of our products perpetually in order to ensure that our
products comply with national standards, including food safety standards.
The Environmental and Sustainability Report set out on pages 17 to 28
provides a review on the Group’s major key performance indicators,
environmental policies, risks and uncertainties and key relationships with
the major stakeholders to the Group (including its employees, customers
and suppliers).

The Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 29 to 36 provides a
review on the Group’s corporate governance performance during the year
under review.

The related party transactions as set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements did not constitute connected/continuing connected
transactions as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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The Board does not recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xianggang

Mr. Yu Yingquan

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Zhijun

Mr. Sun Mingdao

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

By virtue of Article 108(A) of the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”), Mr. Tian Qixiang, Mr. Liu Xianggang and Mr. Sun Mingdao
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 January
2016, Mr. Chen Zhijun tendered his resignation on 7 January 2016 as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Board due to his personal work arrangements to accord with the relevant
requirements of the Ministry of Education of the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Chen’s resignation will become effective from the date of
appointment of a new independent non-executive Director.

None of the above Directors proposed for re-election has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all of them are independent.
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Report of the Directors EEEiRE=

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Group was a party and in which a
Director or his connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the financial year.

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles, the Directors and other officers
of the Company shall be indemnified out of the Company’s assets from
and against all losses and liabilities which they may incur or sustain in the
execution of their duties, excluding any losses and liabilities that may arise
from fraud and dishonesty. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance for the purpose of
indemnifying for losses in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors and other officers of the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:
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Interest in a controlled
corporation
R EE R

Mr. Tian Qixiang The Company
HERFEE PN/

Beneficial owner
EmEBA

Merry Boom Group Limited
1R HLER BB PR A A

3,705,385,194 ordinary shares 61.79%
of HK$0.10 each (L) (note 2)
3,705,385,194%
SREE00BITH
(L) ((PiEE2)
131 ordinary shares of 54.58%

US$1 each (L)
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Mr. Gao Shijun Merry Boom Group Limited  Beneficial owner
=ttERE BEEEER AR EnEAA

Mr. Yu Yingguan Merry Boom Group Limited  Beneficial owner

FRREFEE IREEEARAA BB A
Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company or the relevant associated corporation.

(2)  These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group
Limited is owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Tian is
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Merry Boom Group Limited
under the SFO.

(8  The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,995,892,043
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company nor their respective associates
had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 5 September 2007. The major terms of the Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

1. The primary purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate
our employees and other eligible persons entitled under the Share
Option Scheme to optimise their contributions to the Group and to
reward them for their contribution to the Group.

60 ordinary shares of 25.00%

US$1 each (L)

6O B AR EE 1= T E AR (L)
1 ordinary shares of 0.42%

US$1 each (L)
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Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are (a) any
employee (whether full-time or part-time including any executive
director but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest; (b) any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (c) any
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (d) any customer of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or
business development of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business
alliance or other business arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme adopted by the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in
issue from time to time. The total number of the Shares which may
be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all options (excluding,
for this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the date
on which the Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any further grant
of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting
with such grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.
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Any grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of
their respective associates must be approved by independent non-
executive directors of the Company (excluding independent non-
executive director of the Company who or whose associates is the
proposed grantee of the options). In addition, any grant of options to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company or any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the Shares in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval of the Company in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme is determined by the directors of the Company,
which period may commence from the date of the offer for the grant
of options is made, but shall end in any event not later than 10 years
from the date of the offer for the grant of the option or the expiry
date of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier, subject to
the provisions for early termination as stated in the Share Option
Scheme.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made
within 21 days from the date of the offer for the grant with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee.

The exercise price of the share option is determined by the Board
but shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (jii) the nominal value of the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective till 4
September 2017.

As at 31 December 2015, no share options had been granted under the
Share Option Scheme of the Company.
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As at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, have an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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Merry Boom Group Limited
REEEERAR

Victory Investment China
Group Limited (“VICGL”)

Beneficial owner
BB A

Beneficial owner
EREAA
Person having a security interest

FAERERENOAL

Wang Ruiyun Interest in a controlled
TiRE corporation (VICGL)
S EEEERVICG
Notes:

The letter “L” denotes the long position in the shares of the Company.

These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group
Limited is owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang, an
executive Director and Chairman of the Board. Mr. Tian is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Merry Boom Group Limited under the SFO
as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests” above.

In accordance with the corporate and individual substantial shareholder
notices of VICGL and Wang Ruiyun filed on 17 August 2010, they are
interested in 145,000,000 underlying shares through the holding of certain
unlisted cash-settled equity derivatives, and VICGL is wholly owned by Wang
Ruiyun. Wang Ruiyun is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
VICGL under the SFO.

In accordance with the corporate substantial shareholder notice of VICGL
filed on 17 August 2010, VICGL holds a long position in 99,000,000 shares
jointly with another corporate shareholder named “Goldstone Fund Ltd”.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,995,892,043
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2015.

3,705,385,194 (L)

292,000,000 (L)

61.79% (note 2)
(Mt5E2)

6.52% (note 3, 4)
(B33 - 4)

99,000,000 (L)

391,000,000 (L)

6.52% (note 3)
(F5E3)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, there were no
any other persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement which enables the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2015.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s turnover and purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases
of the Group.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Tian Qixiang

Chairman

Shouguang, The People’s Republic of China

21 March 2016

B EXPEEEN R-E—AF+-A=+—H  #
BEAEMBALT(REZERARRERTHRABINNRA
A0 AR R A 0 A A IR IR RE 25 S R R 52 33616
RRBRARAFENSTMANESLAAE -

B EXCPTIRER 2 BEAAERT BIS0 » F TR R A A A
FEHEMMER R RE2REATCESEBARLQA
sRATME AR A BB kiR Z5 M A 2o o

BE-ZT-RFT-A=+—HLLFE  HEEE I
BEBEEA AR QRN ERES o

SRR S FHEEN BRI ABEARBARLY
EEMRARRBEEN OB EBERIE -

FR - AARBERAREPIELNHEERIEAEEZ X0
TR30% @ MAEE R AMHERELNREREANEE
REBAEFETE30% °

REARAAFASHENEREEEMRM  RARS
BE - ARAER ETRABEEF IR ARREET
PRID BB 25%H) RN TIFIRE -

BHMBRERCABEIBCES M FHAES - IEE
KB R AR =TS PTAR A1 & B 18 MR & A
RBFRG LEEHEE -

RERE=FS

HER

xR
REARKME - B

—E—XFE=A-1+—H



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3% 45

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EEREREEAERDTMT

Mr. Tian Qixiang, aged 52, is the chairman of the Board and a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Board. Mr. Tian is principally responsible for the Group’s
strategic positioning. He is also responsible for formulating the Group’s
business development objectives and ensuring that such objectives are
implemented by the Board accordingly. Mr. Tian has been appointed as
the chairman of the board of directors of Shandong Shouguang Juneng
Golden Corn Development Co., Ltd. (“Golden Corn”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, since 1 June 2015 where he had
also served as chairman during the periods from July 2003 (when he first
joined the Group) to October 2005 and from August 2006 to July 2012
respectively. Mr. Tian had been working for Electricity Supply Company
of Shouguang City (“Shouguang Electricity Supply Company”) since
1984. He was appointed as the deputy manager of Shouguang Electricity
Supply Company in October 1985, and was further appointed as its
deputy party secretary in May 1990. Mr. Tian had been the manager
and party member of Shouguang Electricity Supply Company since
March 2000. He resigned from all his positions in Shouguang Electricity
Supply Company on 3 December 2014. Mr. Tian possesses substantial
experience in corporate management.

Mr. Tian completed his study of Electricity and Water Irrigation from
Water and Electricity Machinery School in 1981 and graduated from The
Shandong Province Party Committee School of the People’s Republic
of China with a diploma in Economics Management in 1996. Mr. Tian
obtained the qualification as a senior economist in December 2002.

Mr. Tian is beneficially interested in approximately 54.58% of the issued
share capital of Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and is also a director of Merry Boom.

Mr. Gao Shijun, aged 48, is the chief executive officer of the Company.
Mr. Gao is principally responsible for overseeing the Group’s operations
and business management. Mr. Gao joined Golden Corn in August
1998, and was later appointed as the deputy manager of Golden Corn
in January 2000. Mr. Gao has been a director of Golden Corn since July
2003 and its general manager since May 2005. Mr. Gao is also a director
of Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio Limited (“Deneng Golden Corn”) and
Shouguang Golden Far East Modified Starch Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Gao obtained an undergraduate degree in Physics in 1989 and
a Master of Business Administration degree in 2012 from Shandong
University. He was also awarded the qualification of senior engineer in
2010. Mr. Gao was appointed as one of the vice-presidents of China
Starch Industry Association with an original term from November 2011 to
November 2015, which had been extended to June 2016.

Mr. Liu Xianggang, aged 47, joined Golden Corn as a factory supervisor
in 1998 and has been a director of Golden Corn since October 2005.
Mr. Liu has been as a director of Deneng Golden Corn since March 2008
and was its general manager from March 2008 to December 2012. He
is responsible for the Group’s production technology developments and
cornstarch production.

Mr. Liu graduated from Shandong Industrial University (subsequently
amalgamated into Shandong University in 2000) in 1990 with an
undergraduate degree in Industrial Management, and obtained a
postgraduate diploma in Industrial Economics from the Economics
School of Shandong University in 2003. Mr. Liu also obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from Shandong University in 2012. Mr.
Liu obtained the qualification as senior engineer in 2002. Mr. Liu is the
deputy supervisor of the Cornstarch Professionals Committee of China
Starch Industry Association.

Mr. Yu Yingquan, aged 47, is principally responsible for the overall
management in investment and corporate finance of the Group. Mr. Yu
first joined the Group as a director of Golden Corn during the period from
July 20083 to October 2005, and was reappointed as director in March
2007.

Mr. Yu graduated from Shandong Hydro Institute in 1990 with a diploma
in Hydro Economic and Financial Management, and obtained a diploma in
Finance Management from Shandong Economics Management Institute
in 1998. Mr. Yu obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional of the
People’s Republic of China issued by Finance Bureau of Shouguang City
in 1997.

Mr. Yu changed his Chinese name to “F#R” from “F 24" while his
English name in Putonghua pinyin remained unchanged.
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Mr. Chen Zhijun, aged 50, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 September 2013. Mr. Chen also serves as
a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr. Chen is a professor and the
Vice-Dean of the School of Management of Shandong University. Mr.
Chen obtained a doctoral degree in Business Management from Nankai
University in 2006. He had been the Chief Academic Consultant (Group’s
Management) of China Centre for Enterprise Group Research at Central
South University since June 2011 for a term of three years. Mr. Chen is a
part-time professor of Anhui University of Finance & Economics and also
serves as a distinguished lecturer for the Advanced Strategy Management
Programme for Outstanding Teachers organised by the National Higher
Education Institutions Teacher Online Training Center under the Ministry
of Education of the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Chen was appointed as an independent director of Shandong
Geo-mineral Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Geo-mineral”) on 24 January 2013.
Mr. Chen was also an independent director of Huayi Compressor Co.,
Ltd. (*Huayi”) for the period from May 2011 to March 2012. The shares
of Shandong Geo-mineral and Huayi are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Sun Mingdao, aged 67, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 September 2013. Mr. Sun also serves as
a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr. Sun was appointed as the
chief secretary of China Starch Industry Association in November 2011
for an original term of four years, which had been extended to June 2016.
Mr. Sun was also appointed as a deputy supervisor of the Professionals
Committee of China Starch Industry Association in November 2015. Mr.
Sun was a vice chairman of the Technical Committee on Food-grade
Starch and Starch Derivatives under the Standardization Administration
of the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Sun had been a deputy director
of the research centre and a vice general manager of Wuhan Huali
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2007.
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Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, aged 50, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 September 2007. Mr. Yue also
serves as the chairman of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr. Yue is
also an executive director, the company secretary and the compliance
officer of Roma Group Limited (“Roma”). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Major Holdings Limited (“Major”). During the period
from 4 July 2014 to 18 November 2014, Mr. Yue was appointed as
an executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group
Company Limited (“Legend Strategy”). Mr. Yue has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Manfield Chemical Holdings
Limited (“Manfield”) on 6 November 2015. Roma, Major, Legend
Strategy and Manfield are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Yue is a certified public accountant with solid experience in
accounting, auditing and corporate finance. Mr. Yue is also a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Colorado
State Society of Certified Public Accountants. He is also holding a
specialist certificate and a practicing certificate in corporate finance of the
Hong Kong Securities Institute.

All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects of
the business and operation of the Group. These executive Directors are
regarded as the members of the senior management team of the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Starch
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 51
to 116, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016

FPRATIEFAEREBA Y BRRAEHSER
BREEHNEERE - FTEENEFIURRZBE A H
i BEMEERNSFFRERMERE HUBRRFE
BAERMGANER - EHEZERBE - ZEHHEE
HZ A RREA MM BREAMEEEE ™A T8 R
FARAERZES] - ARGHEEEIER - ER LIS
REAREFNERERRBR - BANRENEES
PR et IREN QB REL S AR - X
KBS G IRO BRI -

HFAE  RPIESHET R R MEE AR
Pt BRI AR -

HMRR  ZEEHIBHRRERET BT BMELER
BEEMAFHRE BEAREEMBRARANR-Z—RHF
TZA=Z+T—BEMBERR - REEZ B ILFENITE
RALHDRE » WERBEB(RRERDDHKERE
MR o

BOBKEEMEEM
HEZA AN

HB ZE—X"FE=-A=+—H



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &3 51

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EHERREMEERGE X

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZE-—T—HE+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥EFIME)

2014
—Z—NFE
Note RMB’000
B s AREFT
Revenue A 5 4,360,110 4,169,785
Cost of sales HEMA (4,005,778) (3,806,266)
Gross profit EA 354,332 363,519
Distribution expenses baki=k-9: (108,771) (110,953)
Administrative expenses THRER (149,554) (117,164)
Other income and gains, net EHA A Rz 558 6 24,267 19,004
Provision for impairment of property, HENEMEELNDE « BEMRE
plant and equipment in respect of BB ERE
Shouguang Old Plant 14 - (86,437)
Operating profit ReEFHE 120,274 67,969
Finance income BB U A 7 29,888 38,184
Finance expenses MEEMA 8 (9,919) (22,196)
Profit before income tax BR TS AT R A 9 140,243 83,957
Income tax expenses PSR 10 (38,330) (17,612)
Profit and total comprehensive REERER
income for the year AW EEE 101,913 66,345
Attributable to: LA %5 TE e -
Owners of the Company Vi/NSJE =N 98,877 62,725
Non-controlling interests FEVERS RS SR b2 3,036 3,620
101,913 66,345
Earnings per share attributable RATEE AEMN
to owners of the Company BRER
Basic and diluted earnings BREAREERF(ARE)
per share (RMB) 12 0.0165 0.0105

The notes on pages 57 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated 857 & 116 B KMz T & B TRFTAE R EH D -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
& Pt B 1% AR R 3R

as at 31 December 2015 W-ZT—H&+_-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥%I{E)

2014
—E— U
Note RMB’000
B s AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRR 14 1,344,642 1,263,365
Prepaid lease payments TEHAER 15 215,688 215,253
Deposits for acquisition WEETE N ERNIRES
of prepaid lease payments 16 20,830 20,830
Deposits for acquisition of property, WIEYZE - BB MEENRES
plant and equipment 1,503 39,779
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTS TR EE 24 26,236 22 537
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,608,899 1,561,764
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid lease payments BAEER 15 = 4,917
Inventories FE 17 202,951 276,679
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMERGK 18 384,634 381,268
Derivative financial instruments PTHEemIA 19 245 -
Pledged bank deposits 2RI TE R 20 37,916 6,000
Fixed deposits with maturity period =@AA L EHTER
over three months 21 290,000 430,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeRE2%EY 21 298,075 184,568
Total current assets REEEHAE 1,213,821 1,283,432
Total assets EEHAE 2,822,720 2,845,196




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & #tE1#&ikn 3k

as at 31 December 2015 W-Z—H&E+_-_HA=1+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥EFIME)
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2014
—Z—NFE
Note RMB’000
Bd7E ARETF T
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners EATEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital A& AR 22 532,656 532,656
Other reserves H A 23 395,759 415,419
Retained earnings IREB & F 1,124,579 1,038,709
2,052,994 1,986,784
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A R A 2R 30,089 27,053
Total equity A 2,083,083 2,013,837
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FkRBAR
Borrowings B= 25 1,996 2,882
Deferred income PEIEUTA 26 35,432 34,0687
Total non-current liabilities ERBEFEE 37,428 36,949
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMENR 27 570,162 465,609
Income tax payable FERSFTISHE 8,336 20,972
Borrowings B 25 97,436 281,550
Employee housing deposits ETRERES 28 26,275 26,279
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 702,209 794,410
Total liabilities BE8E 739,637 831,359
Total equity and liabilities ERRaEREE 2,822,720 2,845,196
Tian Qixiang Yu Yingquan
HE¥ FER
Director Director
EZE =2

The notes on pages 57 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

SEETE AR A BMERNEHED -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHESZEH R

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE-—ZT—RF+_-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥%I{E)

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARERAEE
Non-
Share Share Special Capital ~ Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
FER

Bx  ROEE  HHRE  EXRE  AERE REEA @ RREER  EEAH
Note RMB'000  RMB'000O ~ RMB'OO0 ~ RVMB000 ~ RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RVB'000
i ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR AREBTR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR

AT January 2014 RoE-IE-A-A 532357 201704 27080 56196 149435 988600 1985373 23433 1978806
Profit and total comprehensive REEFIEREA UGS

income for the year - - - - - 62,725 62,725 3,620 06,345
2013 final dvidend —E-SERURE 13 - (18 - - - - 31882 - 3188
Issue of shares under scrip BERA 82220 R G

dividend scheme 22 299 269 - - - - 568 - 568
Transfer to statutory reserve EAETRE - - - - 12,616 (12,616) - - -

At 31 December 2014 and W-Z-miE

1 January 2015 +-B=+-AK
“Z-hE-A-H 532,656 170,091 21,080 56,196 162,052 1,038,709 1,986,784 27,053 2,013,837
Profit and total comprehensive  KEEFIEREAURER
income for the year - - - - - 98,877 98,877 3,036 101,913
2014 final dividend ~E-MERBRE 13 - (32,667) - - - - (32,667) = (32,667)
Transfer to statutory reserve B ETRE - - - - 13,007 (13,007) - - =
At 31 December 2015 “Z-1f+-f=1-H 532,656 137,424 27,080 56,19 175050  1,124579 2,052,004 30,089 2,083,083

The notes on pages 57 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated 572116 E HIMizT & GBI B RER M EH A D -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SEHEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZE-—T—HE+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥EFIME)

2014
—Z—NFE
Note RMB’000
B s AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities K& EEHWESTRE
Profit before income tax B BT 1S B 1) 140,243 83,957
Adjustments for: KHBATIER -
Finance income BMEWA (29,888) (38,184)
Finance expenses AMEE R 9,919 22,196
Provision for impairment of property, MBHEREIELHYE
plant and equipment in respect of = N 2R A
Shouguang Old Plant SR EEE 9 = 86,437
Provision for impairment of property, MBEBE LK TEEREELN
plant and equipment in respect of M BERERETEN
Electricity and Steam Generating RERE
Equipment 6 10,286 -
Depreciation of property, YE - BB &
plant and equipment BEE 127,921 117,474
Losses on disposals of property, HEWE - WE &
plant and equipment Bt 6 2,783 6,142
Amortisation of prepaid AN TR E A # S
lease payments 4,482 3,820
Amortisation of steam connection FAEBBAR
income and government grants T il B B 6 (3,578) (3,778)
Reversal of deferred income BEEIZE AR B A FE(REY
attributable to steam connection IEFEUA
income 6 (9,357) -
Provision for impairment of trade B ZRBGRE R
receivables 18(b) 9,630 -
Change in fair value of derivative PTEEBMTENRA T EZE)
financial instruments (245) -
Operating cash flows before EEAHREH 2 AN
movements in working capital KRR ERE 262,196 278,064
Decrease in inventories FERmD 73,728 108,202
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 KkEMEN (M),
other receivables (12,996) 142,306
Decrease/(increase) in trade and 5 R EMESZRD, (3B 0)
other payables 104,553 (45,047)
Increase in deferred income attributable 54 B & ik B3R RE WA 3E AN
to government grants 14,300 -
Cash generated from operations MEELNRS 441,781 483,525
Income taxes paid EBURETIS TR (54,665) (39,400)

Net cash generated from operating KA EEEANIRS FE
activities 387,116 444,125
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &4 &g

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—HE+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥%I{E)

2014
—E— U
Note RMB’000
B s AREFT
Cash flows from investing activities REZHNHRESHRE
Interest received BUFE 29,888 38,184
Purchases of property, BEME - BERE&E
plant and equipment (196,680) (266,867)
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEME - BEREEHRES
plant and equipment (1,503) (16,731)
Increase in prepaid lease payments FETRE FIE AN = (31,956)
Proceeds on disposals of property, HEWE  BEMEREFIER
plant and equipment 14,192 8,380
Decrease in fixed deposits with maturity =18 A LA I F EifE
period over three months DA 140,000 50,000
(Increase)/decrease BAEMERITER (3 N) SR>
in pledged bank deposits (31,916) 4,000
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFANE L FE (46,019) (214,990)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZENRLSRE
Interest paid [SEREIESS (9,919) (22,196)
Dividends paid AR (32,667) (31,314)
Proceeds from borrowings BRI 614,950 390,950
Repayments of borrowings EEER (799,950) (537,207)
Decrease in employee housing deposits & TR ERES R (4) -
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFE AR FE (227,590) (199,767)
Net increase in cash and cash Re RN EBYILINFEE
equivalents 113,507 29,368
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January #—A—BHREEREEEY 184,568 155,200
Cash and cash equivalents R+—A=+—HBHEE R
at 31 December REEED 21 298,075 184,568

The notes on pages 57 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated — #57=116E KM TF I A H IS RE M E P I o
financial statements.
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China Starch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands under the Cayman Islands Companies Law
as an exempted company with limited liability on 29 November
2006. lts ultimate holding company is Merry Boom Group Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P. O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) during the year ended 31 December 2015 are the
manufacture and sale of cornstarch, lysine, starch-based sweetener,
modified starch and its related products.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated, and are approved for issue by the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 21 March 2016.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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B ORI

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following new amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2015:

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements

Project 2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements
Project 2011-2013 Cycle

HKAS 19 (Amendment)  Defined Benefit Plants:

Employee Contributions

The adoption of these new and amended standards
and interpretations does not have any significant
impact to the results and financial position of the
Group.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following new, revised and amended standards
and interpretations to existing standards, which are
considered relevant to the Group, that are issued
but not yet effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2015 and have not been early adopted
by the Group:

Annual Improvements
Project
HKAS 1 (Amendment)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle!
Disclosure initiative!

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38  Clarification of Acceptable

(Amendments) Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation!
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in
Joint Operations!
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

HKFRS 15

! Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” will replace HKAS 18 “Revenue” and
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and related
interpretations. With reference to the current
operation of the Group, the Group reviews the
impact of HKFRS 15 to the Group and does not
expect to have a material impact on our future
consolidated financial statements. HKFRS 15
introduces a new five-step revenue recognition
model in which an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 requires disclosures sufficient to
enable users of financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s
contracts with customers, including qualitative
and quantitative information about contracts with
customers, significant judgements, changes in
judgement, and assets recognised from the cost
to obtain or fulfil a contract. This new standard will
allow various transition approaches upon adoption.
The Group will not early adopt HKFRS15 in the next
financial year.

Save for HKFRS 15, the Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the impact of other new
and revised HKFRSs upon initial application and is
not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRS have any significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

21
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B ORI

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

©

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
In addition, the requirements of Part 9 "Accounts
and Audit" of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation during
the financial year, as a result, there are changes to
presentation and disclosures of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.
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2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

()

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
owners in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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2.3

2.4

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwiill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”).
Information relating to segment assets and liabilities is not
disclosed as such information is not regularly reported to the
chief operating decision-maker.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

2.3

2.4

2.5
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2.5 Foreign currency translation(Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the end of the reporting period;

(i)  income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting current translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in
the profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 W% BERXE

Property, plant and equipment, other than those under
construction, are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and impairment losses. Property, plant and equipment under
construction for production or administrative purposes, or for
purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Property, plant and equipment
under construction is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 15-35 years
Plant and machinery 5-12 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Other machinery 4-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘Other income and gains, net’ in the profit or loss.
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2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
(a) Classification
() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within twelve months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise ‘pledged bank
deposits’, ‘fixed deposits with maturity period over
three months’, ‘cash and cash equivalents’ and
‘trade and other receivables’ in the consolidated
statement of financial position (notes 2.11 and 2.12).

2.7

2.8
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(d) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and is subsequently re-
measured at its fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. The derivatives which the Group
entered into are classified as held for trading financial
instruments and any fair value change is recognised in profit
or loss immediately. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within twelve months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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2.10 Inventories

2.11

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13
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2.15 Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-
payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

2.15

2.16

217

ik 42 )
(EEN (#5/

AT aE SR EE b D R 2 AR E - RILE K
ERINMNERRRARERNZIHRA < &£
WERAT  BEMEEEERERBLL - 1008
FREERATRERIA SR HHE -
ZERRBIEARTRREE S RIS IFAN 5K
B NERARE RS -

BIFAEEARERTSEBEE R RTE
EREBHHEREEZD12EA - BRMERSEE

RREAE -

(EE/IDZN

Wik - sk A EARRE S AEIERE Big
S E AT B T E R R — R R IR
HEA - GIMAREEENKAN  EEZ
EEECRBUBFEREREIHERL -

R & B R EER AN KRS A BURFE
BRE  HREMSRASHAEREEE
REEFRARA O -

P E Bt SRR AN EE A AR P R P AR -

&I R FRSH
AEOBIAL DI Y BAETHA - BB
ERARR - R W N R
RN TR BB E BRI - IR
T BB BE Rt A e S
R -

(a) EHFE
EHMEHHEREBEARRIRNE QR
REEBRELRRTBAMENER
RERRERMAEE LERMHIH
BEHIEE - HRB R BrRREn %
HAI - B RE T BT S R R P RN Y
T35 IMRAEE @ERNERARBR K
HERE ST T OB R R A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3tE1 iRk izt

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

(c)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group sponsors defined contributions pension
plans in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.
Contributions made to the defined contributions pension
plans are expenses as incurred. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payment is available.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets) and including that of non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. At
the reporting date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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2.19 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present

219 BtE
EAEEEABEEHTAEAS FRANETR

legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivables for
goods supplied, stated net of returns and value added taxes.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.21

Sales of goods, including (i) upstream products and (ii)
fermented and downstream products, are recognised when
a group entity has delivered goods to the customer, the
customer has full discretion over the channel and price to
sell the goods, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the goods. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been shipped to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

2.22 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(a) The Group as lessee
Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

(b) Land use rights
Land use rights are accounted for as prepaid leases
payments and amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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2.23 BB

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and
are credited to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets.

2.24 Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised as
intangible assets when all of the following criteria are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

(c) thereis an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

()  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
its development can be reliably measured.
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2.24 Research and development expenditure (Continued)

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period. Capitalised development costs
are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point
at which the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over
its useful life, not exceeding five years.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

2.26 Exceptional items

3.1

Exceptional items are disclosed and described separately
in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so to
provide further understanding of the financial performance of
the Group. They are material items of income or expense that
have been shown separately due to the significance of their
nature or amount.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, derivative financial instruments, pledged
bank deposits, fixed deposits with maturity period over three
months, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, trade and
other payables, and employee housing deposits. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence,
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.
Approximately 9% (2014: 13%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the entities of the Group.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate.

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial translation or recognised assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with
respect to United States Dollars (“US$”) and Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"). The management considers
the foreign exchange risk with respect to US$ and
HK$ is not material as the net exposure of the
financial assets and liabilities denominated in these
currencies is insignificant.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions
arising from its operations primarily do not expose
to material foreign exchange risk as the Group’s
assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in
RMB. The Group generates RMB from sales in the
PRC to meet its liabilities denominated in RMB.
The Group has not used any forward contracts or
currency borrowings to hedge its exposure as the
cost-benefit is considered not effective.

Price risk

Corn kernels

Corn kernels are the major raw materials of the
product of the Group and they are subject to price
changes in the commodity market. During the
year, the management did not use any commodity
futures to control the exposure of the Group to
price fluctuations of corn kernel. Instead, purchases
are made in bulk at the time when the market price
of corn kernel is considered as low.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Price risk (Continued)

Cornstarch

Cornstarch is a major product of the Group and it is
subject to price changes in the commodity market.
During the year, the management entered into
cornstarch futures contracts to manage the exposure
of the Group to price fluctuations of cornstarch.

The management considers the price risk with respect
to price changes in commodity market is not material
as the net exposure of price fluctuation of cornstarch
futures contracts is insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as exposure to cash flows interest
rate risk arisen from borrowings obtained at variable
rates is substantially offset by cash held at variable
rates. The Group’s interest-free government loan
and bank borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
management considers the fair value interest rate
risk is insignificant as majority of these borrowings
are repayable within one year.

(b) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade

receivables from third parties. Management has a credit

policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.
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(a) WHmEEE)

(b)

(i)

(i)

B (&)
EARBMA/AEENTIEER -
AHMEEmTISNERES - K
FER - EEER M E KRR
EANEEASERTRERNE
&R B A A B o

ERERSARMISEREDHH
EBRRERITEN  RE/EAK
BHHESONERKEERF
B EX -

I
BRIZF B KGO ERATE
IR SR M R B R R BB 1R
FENEFANBRSMEE K
AEBHBAREERESREXN
BETRMGMEEHZE - &
SEMW%R S BN E R IZEE A
EESHIRITIE RS A R B A
RNFENERER - BRZFER
REHBAR—FRNEE B2
RRATENERBILTEK -

=EmEE
AEENEERRIEREE=NE
FEYR - BEEEENFIEERE - ¥
BB PR EMEERR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BSOS ERRMEE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the creditability of each of the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limit to each customer. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In determining whether allowance
for bad and doubtful debts is required, the Group takes
into consideration of the ageing status and the likelihood
of collection. Following the identification of doubtful
debts, the responsible sales personnel discuss with the
relevant customers and report on the recoverability,
specific allowance is only made for trade receivable that
is unlikely to be collected. In this regards, the directors
are satisfied that this risk is minimal and adequate
allowance for doubtful debts, if any, has been made in
the consolidated financial statements after assessing the
collectability of individual debts.

The credit risk on cash at bank deposited in the PRC
and bills receivables is monitored closely by management
of the Group who will assess the reputation, the risk
of recoverability and the financial information, if any,
of the counterparties before the placing of deposits or
accepting the bills receivables.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in respect of the trade and other receivables, with
exposures spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
RMB1,537,936,000 (2014: RMB881,910,000).

At the reporting date, the Group held liquid assets
including trade and other receivables of RMB190,109,000
(2014: RMB195,765,000) that are expected to readily
generate cash flow for managing liquidity risk.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 BBEERERE B SEBEE)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) wmEELEREE)
Liquidity table TBELF
The following table details the Group’s contractual TREAMAEENFFTECRAGBNE
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table FEEEHE - ZRERAEBE AT HENRN
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash T xF AN BAERMRREESR
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on EMHER - TRPEBESERERAF K
which the Group can be required to pay. The amounts BRIRIA S -
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows:
Group FEE
2015 “T-RF
Trade and other payables B 5 REAEMNE 426,882 = = 426,882
Borrowings S
- interest free -%8 2,436 886 1,110 4,432
- interest-bearing -:tE 97,223 - - 97,223
Employee housing deposits B TEERZES 26,275 - - 26,275
552,816 886 1,110 554,812
2014 s
Trade and other payables B S REMEMRR 391,120 - - 391,120
Borrowings &
- interest free -%8 1,550 886 1,996 4,432
- interest-bearing -it8 290,939 - - 290,939
Employee housing deposits B TRERES 26,279 - - 26,279
709,888 886 1,996 712,770
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3.2

3.3
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Capital management 3.2 BEAREHE
The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard AEBEEERNEERREAEETFE
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order EEEBE T - AR R IR M0 FR0 A H (b g
to provide return for shareholders and benefits for other ERAARMAZE - BT HFIFEEARR
stakeholders. In order to maintain or adjust the capital B ASEHAERAEAREIANORES
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to B oMBRERERLDER - BOFRIEDEE
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares B #EARERESKAK -
or sell assets to reduce the cost of capital.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to RATSEEAIME A RH B EEFEAI
externally imposed capital requirement. HEHEREAREK o
2014
—E-F
RMB’000
AR¥TT
Total borrowings [EpEat 99,432 284,432
Total assets BEME 2,822,720 2,845,196
3.5% 10.0%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME

The financial instruments that are measured in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value are required to
disclose their valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s assets measured at fair
value are held for trading financial instruments of approximately
RMB245,000 (2014: nil) which are measured using Level 1
method.

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

RAHHBRARANADFEFENS T
EFSHEMEANGBEL L - TRERR
FEMWT
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the date of statement
of financial position. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included
in Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise held for
trading financial instruments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of loans and
receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements are approximated to their fair
values.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(@ Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Note 2.8 describes that trade and bills receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised
in the profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows as expected by management discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.
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(b)

Valuation on inventories

The Group assesses periodically if the inventories have
been suffered from any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2.10. The Group carries out
an inventory review on a product-by-product basis at the end
of the reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving items. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such finished goods, work-in-progress and
raw materials primarily on the estimated future selling price and
market conditions. Where the estimates of the net realisable
value are less than expected, a material allowance may arise.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
adjust the depreciation charge where useful lives are different
to that of previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2.7. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated using the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposals and its value-in-use. If the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are recognised
in the profit or loss.

During the year, certain property, plant and equipment have
been impaired by RMB10,286,000 (2014: RMB86,437,000),
details of which are set out in note 14.
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The Executive Directors, being the chief operating decision maker
of the Group, consider the business from a product perspective
in the past. However, due to continual expansion and business
development of the Group, management has changed its internal
organisation structure to align more closely with the Group’s
strategic decision and reflect the economic similarity and distinction
of products. The Group has adopted the new organisation structure
as the reporting format effective for the year ended 31 December
2015. The comparative segment information has been reclassified
to reflect the current organisational structure. The Group’s operating
segments are as follows:

Upstream products — the manufacture and sale of cornstarch
and ancillary corn-refined products

Fermented and — the manufacture and sale of lysine,
downstream products starch-based sweetener, modified
starch and other products, as well as

other services
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Interest income and expenses are not included in the result for each
operating segment as these are managed on a group basis and are
not allocated to reportable segments.

Unallocated income and expenses mainly consist of certain
government grants and corporate costs respectively which cannot
be allocated to individual segments.

Sales between segments are charged at cost or with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices. The revenue from external parties
reported to the management is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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M ESWARFX ARASBEEEER - WARDEE
AIREDEL - WTEHARKLEDHEEN

ADEMA R I EEBHERED B EER 7S
EBHE T ERT B R B SEAA

AR E TR A K2 E M E =T HE PR
EEREFNEMNTERE - MEREREHINED
WA BERES fHE R L EMEA aE KRR
RE—%-

2015 —T—RF
Sales to external customers AR EEEE 3,339,891 1,020,219 4,360,110
Inter-segment sales DEEEE 150,209 11,112 161,321
Reportable segment gross profit A& 2 HER 225,351 128,981 354,332
Reportable segment results A RE D EEE 215,721 118,802 334,523
Unallocated income AABUA 21,671
Unallocated expenses ROBFAX (235,920)
Finance income BE YA 29,888
Finance expenses BmEER (9,919)
Profit before income tax BRAT S B AT RIS 140,243
Other segment information: HibpEEs :
Depreciation and amortisation PrEE 5 52,670 54,691 107,361
Provision for impairment of BB RETVEERE

property, plant and equipment EHEVZE ~ BE K&

in respect of Electricity and SRR E RS

Steam Generating Equipment - 10,286 10,286
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Fermented and

Upstream downstream
products products Total
BEER
EFES THFEm &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARBFT
2014 (Restated) —E-E(ES)
Sales to external customers RSN B F S 2,971,862 1,197,923 4,169,785
Inter-segment sales D EBEIHE 147,149 59,183 206,332
Reportable segment gross profit A[HE S IFEF 252,848 110,671 363,519
Reportable segment results AREDEPEE 232,542 45,506 278,048
Unallocated income KA TEHA 15,723
Unallocated expenses ROBLFZ (225,802)
Finance income BE U A 38,184
Finance expenses MEEMA (22,196)
Profit before income tax BRET1S BRI E 83,957
Other segment information: HitppEHR -
Depreciation and amortisation YTE N 42,995 56,855 99,850
Provision for impairment of MENERESIELH
property, plant and equipment Y - BB REEN
in respect of Shouguang Old Plant T E R 20,306 48,565 68,871

The revenue from external customers in the PRC for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB3,896,835,000 (2014:
RMB3,609,279,000), and the revenue from external customers
from other countries amounted to RMB463,275,000 (2014:
RMB560,506,000).

HE—_ZT-—A€+_A=+—HLEE %7+
/oM E B IR B AR B 3,896,835,0007T (=&
—PO4F = AR#3,609,279,0007T) + 3K H E M
RINREF KA B AR 463,275,000 (= F
—Pu4F : ARH#560,506,0007T) °
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2014
—Z—OF
RMB’000
AREFT
Government grants (note) B B (B 5E) 5,901 8,102
Amortisation of steam connection income T B A KRBT B 8
and government grants (note 26) B (MsEo6) 3,578 3,778
Reversal of deferred income attributable to BB Z BB ARG HIREN A
steam connection income (note 26) (Mi5E26) 9,357 -
Gain on sales of scrap coal and oil SHE B KR 2 W 3,295 4,324
Net fair value gain on derivative financial TSR ITANAFEREFE
instruments 3,095 -
Provision for impairment of property, MBEBENFTEERMBELNDE - B
plant and equipment in respect of B MR B R E B (71 14)
Electricity and Steam Generating
Equipment (note 14) (10,286) -
Losses on disposal of property, HEWE  BREMREZEE
plant and equipment (2,783) (6,142)
Others EHA 12,110 8,942
24,267 19,004
Note: G
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the government grants mainly BE2—Z—FF+-_A=1+—HIFE  BF@EHTIER
represented subsidies from local government for, inter alia, compensation M B (R e R EMARI S ENEENRBEN
for the cessation of power plant’s operation and the relocation to the new RENNFEERENER - BUTHB TR BFBRIS R
production base in Shouguang. The government grants were granted at the H o WIS E MY -

discretion of the government and were not recurring in nature.
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2014
—ZE—F
RMB’000
ARETF T
Interest income on bank deposits IRITFRHFBUA 29,888 38,184
2014
—ZE—F
RMB’000
AREF T
Interest on: LATIEE®FE :
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable - AR RAFANBEERNRITER
within 5 years 9,782 21,976
— Discounted bills receivables - EUALIR = E 137 220

9,919 22,196
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Profit before income tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting)

the following items:

BTSRRI AEE M, (G A) TFIEE -

2014
—ZT—yF
RMB’000
ARETF T
Cost of Inventories recognised as expenses RAERTNFERAME17)
(note 17) 3,944,450 3,751,919
Employee benefit expenses (including BERFRAY(BIE
directors’ emoluments) (note 11) EEME) (FIFE11) 137,994 130,225
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BB R ETE (MiE14)
equipment (note 14) 127,921 117,474
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE R E R 8 (P =E15)
(note 15) 4,482 3,820
Provision for impairment of property, RBALEBEEHNDE - BEK
plant and equipment in respect of SRR E R (HEE14)
Shouguang Old Plant (note 14) - 86,437
Provision for impairment of trade B S IEUGRE
receivables (note 18(b)) BEE B (H3E18() 9,630 -
Foreign exchange gain [ H ek (3,711) (69)
Operating lease payments CETER 666 659
Research and development expenses LRz ER (M)
(note) 6,584 10,215
Auditor’s remuneration TR ERED = A
— Audit services - BAZER 1,204 1,162
— Non-audit services - JEER 27 38

Note:

Research and development costs include staff costs of employees in the
research and development department, which are included in the employee

benefits expenses as disclosed above.

GEE

RFTHTEZ BREBMFASH -

MERRERAREHEFEEZBTHA - FEFHAL
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2014
—Z-F
RMB’000
AREFT
PRC Enterprises Income Tax (“EIT”) B ERSHR(TERER])
— Current year - RNFE 41,349 42,821
— Under/(over)-provision in prior years - BEFEREHENC(BEEE) 680 (3,763)
Deferred income taxes (note 24) EIEFTE R (M7E24) (3,699) (21,446)
38,330 17,612
The Group’s major business is in the PRC. Under the law of the AEF 7 EFEEBANPRET - IBEPHBEALE
PRC on EIT and its Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the FERE AR R EEHmME - PENEQRRH
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. BFE 2B X R25% o
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group AR ASENERAMEFEALEBEEBEEK
entities’ profit neither arose in nor was derived from Hong Kong BREVFE - AT BB E B RS R B4 -

during both years.
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The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

income tax as follows:
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R E IR A R FT S B AT MBS AR

2014
—ZT—yF
RMB’000
ARETF T
Profit before income tax KPS R AT 140,243 83,957
Tax at applicable income tax rate LA A TS T 5 25%
at 25% (2014: 25%) (ZZ— U4 - 25%):HEMHE 35,061 20,989
Tax effects of T3S ERBEE -
— Different tax rate - TR =& (315) 91
- Expenses not deductible for tax - AR
purposes 2,725 798
— Income not subject to tax - BAERFBA (487) (982)
— Temporally differences not recognised - RKERERE=E 33 (170)
— Tax losses not recognised - RERHBSER 633 649
— Under/ (oven)-provision in prior years - BAFERETR (BERE) 680 (3,763)

38,330 17,612
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2014

—T—JNFE

RMB’000

ARETT

Wages and salaries TITENH® 99,169 90,563
Pension cost (note) Rke B8R (M) 14,574 12,661
Staff welfares B TiEA| 24,251 27,001
Total employee benefit expenses EERMNMZ B 137,994 130,225

Note:

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by
the Group in future years.

The Group has sponsored various defined contribution plans for its
employees in the PRC. These plans are organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments based on certain percentage of the relevant
employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing
and future retired employees under these plans and the Group has no further
constructive obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions
made.

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme which is
managed by an approved trustee registered under Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”) for its employees in Hong Kong.
Both the Group and its employees in Hong Kong are required to contribute
a maximum of 5% of each individual’s relevant income or a limited amount
as prescribed by the MPF Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group and independently administered.

i

T 4 2R U SR AT BRI A SR B AR AR B A (K

AEERAETEER2EZERTHRE - ZF5E
AR E MR EIE - LAMES ARAZETADLLF
HEK - MARARERBRTFGEREBEELHAEAMERER
RACRINEBAERARBANEME - BIELETON  AKH
PR S EE— SR RE -

AEETAERBBORBRILATHRE - ARG
AR R B 1 AR EEBI (TRTa 24P D FEMaotof
HFEAEE - ARENEFBESGAZRED GO
PIZEBRBARARZ5%E FRSBEL K - SHRINE
ERAKENEENRSE  WEYERE -
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The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:
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KATEBRAE AR SREREF TR TH
Bt

2014
—ZT—yF
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the RATHEE AEEFBEARETIT)
Company (RMB’000) 98,877 62,725
Weighted average number of ordinary BT AR I E (TR
shares in issue (thousands) 5,995,892 5,994,109

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 were the same because there was no
dilutive potential ordinary share.

HREE-E-RFR-_ZF-WFt+-A=+—H
I FEHEREEM AN BEEL AR - WERER
NESER AR o

2014
—Z—pEF
RMB’000
ARETF T
Final dividend in respect of previous AR 2
financial year, approved and paid BEAEFBFERPRE
during the year of HK0.69 cents FH%0.691L
(2014: HK0.67 cents) per share —E—PU4E : 0.671) 32,667 31,882
Final dividend proposed after the end RS B B BUR A R B B (B E)
of the reporting period (note) - 32,638

Note:

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015. A final dividend of HK0.69 cents per share was
proposed after the year ended 31 December 2014 and was paid in June

2015.

ML -

EEeTHAMBE_ZT - AF+ A=+ HLFEK
BERAKE RBE_Z-NF+_A=+—RLFE
% ZHRBRBREER0.69E - YER -F—HF
SRR -
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Plant and
equipment
Plant and Motor Other under
Buildings machinery vehicles machinery  construction Total
TERRE
53 BERHEE e 4 e At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETR ARETR ARETT AEETR AEETT AEETT

Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-MET-A=t-HLEE

Net book value as at RZZ-NE-A-BHERSE

1 January 2014 364,705 685,006 789 19,132 131,559 1,208,295
Addtions RE - 3992 1,779 068 267,064 273,503
Transfers upon completion THREE - 33,324 - - (33,324) -
Disposals/writien-off HE /K (3842 0.897) (12) (771) - (14522)
Reclassication EFipE| (5,155) - 20 5,135 - -
Depreciation charge for the year FEEER (20077) (89,640 (2.468) (5,289) - (117,474)
Impairment charge for the year FEREER (77,556) (8,042) (35) (804) - (86,437)
Net book valug as at R-E-MET-A=T-RH

31 December 2014 FEFE 258,075 614,743 7177 18,071 365,299 1,263,365
At 31 December 2014 RoE-ME+-A=+-AFK

and 1 January 2015 “E-1f-f-A
Cost [ 476,820 1,100,383 15,996 08,305 365,299 2,027,308
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ 23H7% J5ifE (218,745) (485,645) (8819 (50,734) - (763,943)
Net book valug BEFE 258,075 614,743 7177 18,071 365,299 1,263,365
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-2-RETCASt-ALEE
Net book value as at RIE-T5-A-BHEEFE

1 January 2015 258,075 614,743 1Al 18,071 365,299 1,263,365
Additions HE 67 17,752 3171 - 215,469 236,459
Transfers upon completion THEER 4433 40820 - 385 (85,540) -
Disposals/written-off HE /M (2.639) (13,749) 79 (512) - (16,975)
Depreciation charge for the year EENERR (19,176) (102,937) (2,628) (3,180) - (127.921)
Impairment charge for the year FEREER - (10,286) - - - (10,286)
Net book value s at RIE-RET-A=T-BH

31 December 2015 FEFE 280,666 546,343 7,641 14,764 495,028 1,344,642
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+-B=1-A
Cost A 512,564 1,064,805 17,690 63,410 495,228 2,153,697
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment - 25T ERH(E (231,8%8) (318,462) (10049 (48.646) - (809,055

Net book value BEFE 280,666 546,343 7,641 14,764 495,228 1,344,642
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As at 31 December 2015, buildings with carrying amounts of
RMB20,987,000 (2014 nil) was pledged for securing bank facilities
granted to a subsidiary of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, additions of property,
plant and equipment included an amount of RMB39,779,000 (2014
RMB6,636,000) transferred from deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, due to the cessation of
manufacturing operations of the previous production base located in
Shouguang and relocation of the production to the new production
base during the second half of 2014, the management carried
out an impairment review on the manufacturing plant, machinery
and other equipment remained in the previous production base
(“Shouguang Old Plant”). These assets include manufacturing plant,
machinery and other equipment that are unmovable (@amounted to
RMB68,872,000 as to manufacturing assets and RMB17,565,000
as to non-manufacturing assets respectively). Considering (i)
the physical condition of these unmovable machinery and other
equipment and (ii) the fact that the land on which the manufacturing
plant is situated is not going to be used for industrial purpose,
according to the future development plan of the region in which the
previous production base was located, the management considered
the fair value less cost of disposal of the Shouguang Old Plant
immaterial and made a full provision of RMB86,437,000 (note 9).

As at 31 December 2015, the management carried out an
impairment review and concluded that no further impairment loss
was required except for certain electricity and stream generating
equipment (“Electricity and Stream Generating Equipment”) with
an original plan for re-use upon relocation. Taking into account of
the latest change in development plan in the second half of 2015
and the physical condition of the Electricity and Stream Generating
Equipment, the management considered the fair value less cost of
disposal of these assets to be minimal and made a full provision of
RMB10,286,000 (note 6) for the current financial year.
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R-IZE—RAF+-A=+—H FEFEARE
20,987,0007C( =Z—W4F : T)WIEFE TR -
EAAEE—MWB QR FTERRITEENER -

HE-_Z-—A€+_F=1+—ALEE FED
¥ BELRIBEE-Z8WEDE  BE&E
HHRBSEHMESTEARKS9,779,000T(=F
—mE - AR¥6,636,0000T) °

REZE-Z—NE+-A=+—HALEE gl =
T—E TEFRIPRAIMNA BN EERE 2 &
EEE YEEIFBEMEERSMET  §18
BOHEMEES([FLERE NG THEE
5 - B R E MR EETRER c REEER
REERE  THBBNKEREMRE(EEES
ERIFEEZLES BIEMEARY68,872,0007T &
ARB17,565,0007T) ° EH ()% S T L7 B )
ERHEMBENERNR - BiRELATEERE
FTER [ HO AR SRR RS - EEME AT g
CAEIERE  TEEBRASHEREZATE
S ERASEGN  YOIEHE2HBEEARK
86,437,0007T (FiE9) -

R-Z—RE+-_A=+—0  BEEBETHER
o URAERETREAMENEEREANEER
FAEERE(BREREREEREDIN - BEB
{ERERIE - EERIBERABR T —RFTHF
MEFEE  TEERARERZTEERENA
FER SR ABBEBY - TERATREZER
2B ARH10,286,0007T (Hi5E6) ©
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The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use right in the PRC
represent the prepaid operating lease payments and their net book
values are analysed as follows:

REBERPEZHE T iR K&+ i ARERNFA RS
RETHERUR - RENRIFEDTNAT

2014

—E—E

RMB’000

AREETF T

Net book value BREFE

At 1 January ®n—HA—H 220,170 151,919
Additions NE - 72,071
Amortisation charge for the year (note 9) FREHE R (ME9) (4,482) (3,820)
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H 215,688 220,170
Cost B 238,196 238,196
Accumulated amortisation Sy (22,508) (18,026)
Net book value at 31 December R+=-A=+—8BHEEZEE 215,688 220,170

As at 31 December 2015, leasehold land with carrying amounts of
RMB30,482,000 (2014: nil) was pledged for securing bank facilities
granted to a subsidiary of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no prepaid lease
payments (2014: RMB40,115,000) were transferred from deposits
for acquisition of prepaid lease payments.

RZB-—RF+-A=+—0 REFEARK
30,482,0007T(—F—MF : T)WHEE L2 TH
o AERAEE —HMEARMERIRITEENIE
o

REBEE-Z—AFE+-_A=+—801tFE " It&
BAEERAKEEMRERNESPHEE(=ZF
—PO4 « AR#40,115,0007T) °
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The amount represents the initial deposit paid to the Municipal B R IEIE LU LA 53 ¢ B 30 M (A1 B3 56 T IBURT
Government of Shouguang for the acquisition of land located in IO NPRES -
Shouguang.
2014
—ZT—F
RMB’000
AREFT
Raw materials Rt E 97,821 197,795
Work in progress EER 24,447 21,341
Finished goods BIPK 80,683 57,543
202,951 276,679
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included HRAAMI R ATHERRN NWEFEERKK A
in “cost of sales” amounted to RMB3,944,450,000 (2014: AR #3,944,450,000 L ( Z & —OF : AR
RMB3,751,919,000). 3,751,919,0007T) °
2014
—E—mF
RMB’000
ARETT
Trade receivables (a) Z SN () 152,453 147,116
Less: Provision for impairment of trade B SRR E R E D)
receivables (b) (9,630) -
142,823 147,116
Bank acceptance bills (c) SR1TH 2= (0) 194,525 185,503
Other receivables and prepayments HoAth WK R FB A 3R 47,286 48,649

384,634 381,268
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The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are mainly
denominated in RMB.

(@)

Trade receivables
The Group normally grants credit period ranging from 0 to 120
days (2014: 0 to 120 days) to customers.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period is shown as follows:

B 5 MEMERRNRAETEUARBHE -

(@ BZEWXK
FEE—RETEFPHNEERRTEE—F -+
H(ZZ—F : ZZ—A=_TH)TZ

AT RN EHIRE S RYGRABRER DT -

2014

—Z—OF

RMB’000

ARETF T

0-30 days ETx=+H 103,291 102,828
31-60 days =t+—Z/,x1tH 11,438 21,621
61-90 days ANt—ENTA 9,992 6,711
Over 90 days =1 27,732 15,956
152,453 147,116

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB40,820,000 (2014:
RMB25,992,000) which are past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers of whom there is
no recent history of default.

REBEEZERFEHDEREEEAA
R #40,8200007T (ZZF —M4F : AR
25,992,0007T ) K EUR RSN - BEAKIB AT 5
BB ERE - 2SS SE K40 8%
MWZEBYEFAR -
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(@) Trade receivables (Continued)
Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired is shown as follows:

(@ H
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Y LENE D)
BRI HE W SRERNE 5 KRR BRI 2 i ia
T

2014

—Z—OF

RMB’000

ARET T

1-30 days —Z=+H 11,438 13,916
31-60 days =+—Z=x1+H 9,992 2,229
61-90 days Nt—ZEA+H 5,701 1,560
Over 90 days =1 13,689 8,287
40,820 25,992

Included in trade and other receivables is an amount due
from non-controlling interests of RMB4,335,000 (2014:
RMB7,683,000). Details of balances with related companies
are set out in note 31(iii). No impairment has been made for
receivables from related companies.

(b) Provision for impairment of trade receivables
As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of RMB9,630,000
(2014: nil) were impaired and fully provided for. The individually
impaired receivables past due for over twelve months are
related to a customer, which has financial difficulty.

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B 5 KE b FE UGB IE FEUR SRR AR AR R 25
%ﬁﬁ/\ﬁ%,sssoooﬁ(:f mE AR
7,683,0007T) ° ﬁg [ = Wi
31(iji) o FEUR R E /TJ\IEI???\/HE °

B 2 EWFURERE
RZZE—RAF+ZA=+—8 AR
9,630,000 C( =T —M4F : T)HE Z UK
EREIER HEE - R MENERERE
B+ @A nE-ZERBRRENES
B -

REEE 5 RUGORERENZE T

2014

—E—mF

RMB’000

AREFIT

At 1 January »—A—AH - -
Provision for impairment (note 9) BB (FEE9) 9,630 -
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 9,630 -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Rifs BRSNS SEEARA LS E
R AR » 74585 B30 4 5 E TR
(AR -
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(c) Bank acceptance bills

) RITERERE

2014
—F—mF
RMB’000
ARBFT

Endorsed bills
Bills on hand

D

S
B> S

Ik

126,621 131,055
67,904 54,448

194,525 185,503

The bank acceptance bills are normally with maturity period
of 180 days (2014: 180 days). There is no recent history of
default on bank acceptance bills.

As at 31 December 2015, bank acceptance bills of
RMB2,000,000 (2014: RMB4,692,000) were pledged to banks
for securing bills payables.

RITEARE-RIPHARA—BNTR(Z
Z—mF  —BNATHE) - |RITARLEBAH
I HBE KALER o

R-ZZ—RAF+_A=1+—8 AER®K
2,000,0007T (ZZ—M4F : AR¥4,692,000
TO) MR TR BRI TIRIT - (EAEN
SIREYIK -

2014
—F—mF
RMB’000
ARETT

Futures contracts HEEH

245 -

Futures contracts used by the Group are classified as held for
trading financial instruments.

As at 31 December 2015, the notional principal amount of the
outstanding cornstarch futures contracts was approximately
RMB34,005,000.

At 31 December 2015, the pledged bank deposits were pledged
to a bank for securing bills payables (note 27) and banking facilities
respectively.

At 31 December 2014, the pledged bank deposits were pledged to
a bank for securing bills payables (note 27).

The deposits were denominated in RMB.

AEEMEANPERNDBERFKIFEESRT
A

R-ZZ—RF+_A=+—H ' KRFEEKBRHE
P BFEARLRAL R ARES4,005,0007T ©

R-ZE-—RFT-A=1—8B ER—RETHEMN
BHEIMRITER - DRERENTRER(H=27) &R
TTEERIER -

R-ZE-—NE+-_HA=1—8 ER—RETEMN
BHEIPRITER - (ERENRIR (27 B9 -

FRIVAARKESHE -
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2014

—ZT—yF

RMB’000

ARETF T

Cash at banks and in hand (notes (i) and (i)~ $R773 & & T SA3R & (M 7E6) R i) 298,075 184,568

Cash and cash equivalents R RIREEEY 298,075 184,568
Fixed deposits with initial maturity period REIEE A=A L EMNTEEFER

over three months (notes (i) and (iii) CPf iy R (i) ) 290,000 430,000

588,075 614,568

Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits with maturity period
over three months are mainly denominated RMB.

Notes:

0
(i

(i)

(v)

Cash at banks earns interest at daily floating rates of bank deposit.

These fixed deposits earn interest of 4.70% — 6.85% (2014: 6.80% —
6.85%) per annum.

The bank balances are deposited with credit worthy banks with no
recent history of defaults. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and fixed deposits with maturity period over three months
approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank balances of
RMB583,167,000 (2014: RMB612,278,000) are deposited with banks
in the PRC. The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

RePReFEMR=MANELEBFEREZAA
R¥EEHE -

Mo

(0

(i

(i)

(iv)

RITRE TIRBITEARE R SERERAE -

15 BiTF R G AR 4.7056.85/E (=T — U4 ¢
6.80%6.85/2 ) HEVFI S ©

RITAERTDFRGI MY BENTHENEEER
7 R kReEBYR=MEA N LEHFRNER
E{EEENFERS -

RZZ—AF+-A=+—08 A£ERTHE
#h AR #583,167,000 (=T —WMF : AR
612,278,0007T) J37F AR B KIIRTT - R EESE
H P B 3% T A B R T A 4 ) S NEE B 1 4R AU SR AR
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Number
of shares Share capital
RHEE [
‘000 HK$'000
T FAxT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREE0.10B T2 LMk
At 31 December 2014 and 2015 RN-EB—NER
—T-RF+-A=1+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Number
of shares Share capital
RHBE [N
000 HK$’'000 RMB’000
T FET ARETT
Ordinary shares, issued and TER BERITRAR
fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SR EEO. 10/ T 2 L ik
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—mF—HA—H 5,992,129 599,212 532,357
Shares issued under scrip dividend BRI AR BT 813817 2 %D
scheme 3,763 377 299
At 31 December 2014 and 2015 RZE—NER_T—RF
+=-—A=+—~H 5,995,892 599,589 532,656
The following shares were issued to shareholders who elected ATAERZZ—UFRIEARNKEFTEI 3T TiRE
scrip shares in lieu of cash dividend pursuant to the scrip dividend KR ERNDERRESRENRRARGD « FEd
scheme in 2014. The new ordinary shares rank pari passu in all PR & T EEARA FIRE LB EE RS AL o
respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.
Number Scrip Share Share
of shares price capital premium Total
RGEE REEH® [N REEE &t
‘000 HK$ RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Fiz BT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Share issued in 2014 as 2013 RZT—FETER
final scrip dividend “T-ZERERERH 3,763 0.1898 299 269 568
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Share Special Capital Statutory
premium reserve reserve reserve Total
RARE BRI NG EERE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETRT AR%TR
(note (i) (note (ii))
(FEEG) (PEEEG)
At 1 January 2014 RZZT—mFE—A—H 201,704 27,080 56,196 149,436 434,416
2013 final dividend ZT-ZFRERE (31,882) - - - (31,882)
Issue of shares under scrip RBEBRR BATEIETTZ
dividend scheme W in 269 - - - 269
Transfer to statutory reserve BT RE - - - 12,616 12,616
At 31 December 2014 and N-E-—ME+-A=1+—H
1 January 2015 k=ZT—-h%—A—H 170,091 27,080 56,196 162,052 415,419
2014 final dividend T -IFERBRE (32,667) - - - (32,667)
Transfer to statutory reserve YN - - - 13,007 13,007
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=+—H 137,424 27,080 56,196 175,059 395,759
Notes: R

0

(i

Under the Cayman Companies Law, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the distribution of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Special reserve of the Company and the Group represents (a)
the difference between the nominal value of the share capital and
share premium issued by the Company and the aggregate of the
share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries acquired upon
the Group’s reorganisation; and (b) the difference between the
consideration paid by the direct subsidiary for the entire registered
capital of the indirect subsidiary and the amount of registered capital of
the indirect subsidiary.

Deferred income tax assets are calculated in respect of temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

() RERSHSRARE  EAMEEAMIAEIAE
SURRT » AR B E B0 i B AT 15 AR 2R 20 R SOK
S - HEREBREDIRE - KARIBERENE
EEN AR ER DI HNEY -

(i)  ARFRARENGHEEE - @ARBMETR
N H T8 5 IS 17 i 8 1 8 A 5 [ 25 A s T B O Bf
BRRKRARERNSEEEZHNERE  ROo)EE
MEARSMEZENEAREBEMERFOHRE
ERRMBATNEME R 2 M EH -

ERFSHEEDREREZBRIERBEEARAR
WEHR A ERMALER L REBMIT R

St
H o
ZAr
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The movements on deferred income tax assets in respect of the
impairment of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

ME - BB RRERERNETHAEHEENZES N
T

2014

—ZE—F

RMB’000

AREFIT

At 1 January n—A—H 22,537 1,091
Credited to the profit or loss st ABE 3,699 21,446
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8H 26,236 22,537

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB2,043,000 (2014:
RMB1,396,000) in respect of losses amounting to RMB12,381,000
(2014: RMB8,461,080) that can be carried forward indefinitely
against future taxable income.

As at 31 December 2015, deferred tax liabilities of RMB55,453,000
(2014: RMB49,753,000) have not been recognised in respect of the
tax that would be payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, subject to the eligibility to the
treaty benefit under HK-PRC tax treaty, as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that
such differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

BIEFTS A E D TIEE B AEER - LB
MBEFR AT BBARERTEFEEREE AR - &
E 3 gt AR #12,381,0007T (—Z—P04E : AR
1:8,461,0807T, ) F] £ PR HA 4585 A /EHC 0 R SR FEER TR
WA K BB RIEIEFTS T & B A R 2,043,000
TL(ZZE—WF « AR¥1,396,0007T) °

R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—H BRAAFAE
HARBIFEMBRARANKRERS  BEHEE=E
AT LA BB E - iR B DR %S
R B B B A B4R BB Ui B B FE A 0 B IE R SRR AE R
15 & & ARES5,543,0007C( — T — U4 : AR
49,753,0007T) (R T REABKZERBRGHT
TEBERE) ©

2014
—Z—F
RMB’000
ARETT
Bank borrowings, secured (note (i) RITIE R - AR (HREG) 95,000 90,000
Bank borrowings, unsecured RITRE - B = 190,000
Government loan, unsecured (note (i) BRI E R - S (PRE(Gi) 4,432 4,432
99,432 284,432

Less: Amount due within one year shown B ERBBEET —FRIIHNESE
under current liabilities (97,436) (281,550)
Non-current liabilities ERHEaE 1,996 2,882
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Notes: B & -
i) At 31 December 2015, bank borrowings consisted of (i) (i)
RMB80,000,000 (2014: RMB90,000,000) which were secured
by guarantee provided by subsidiaries of the Group and (ii)
RMB15,000,000 (2014: nil) which were secured by leasehold land and
buildings of the Group.

RZZ—AF+ZA=+—8 ' BITERBEOUE
= EFT BN R IR EE R 09 A R 80,000,000
(=T —m&E : AR¥90,000,00070)  K(i)AA
EEME L REFEE R AR 15,000,0007T
(ZT—WE:FT) -

BAERERETAEE -RNERTNEAE
By - ZHEHABRER  2ERER-_FT-NFNA
NHAIEREE -

(i) Government loan represented government assistance provided to one (ii)
of the subsidiary of the Group. The balance is unsecured, interest-free
and fully repayable by 6 April 2019.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

RIZE-—RAFER-ZF-NE+-A=+—R " &%
EEERERA T ERER

Bank borrowings Government loan Total

BATHERK BRER% &t
2014 2014 2014
—T-|mF T T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT

Wholly repayable within EREFEAZHMEE
5 years

Within 1 year —FR 95,000 280,000 2,436 1,550 97,436 281,550
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF - - 886 886 886 886
Between 2 and 5 years WEEREF - - 1,110 1,996 1,110 1,996
95,000 280,000 4,432 4,432 99,432 284,432

The government loan was non-interest bearing. The bank
borrowings carried interest ranging from 4.4% to 6.1% (2014: 5.7%

to 6.1%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are approximate to
their fair values. The carry amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

denominated RMB.

(H Ef

BRERRRE © 81T

EEEN

RIAEZGAE(ZE

—POF : 5.7EE6AE)NFEFRTER S -

REBEROREERLATERE - REEER
MAREEAARERE -
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Steam

connection Government
income grants Total
RRERBA BB D
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT ARETT
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—mNFE—HF—H 15,796 22,049 37,845
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FEHH(H6) (3,319) (459) (3,778)

At 31 December 2014 and RZE—NF+=A=+—H

1 January 2015 ;r=—ZE—RF—H—H 12,477 21,590 34,067
Additions N - 14,300 14,300
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FEHHE(H6) (3,120) (458) (3,578)
Reversal during the year FFHEEm (9,357) - (9,357)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF+_-_A=+—H - 35,432 35,432

Steam connection income represents the payment received from
customers for the connection of steam pipelines. Subsequent to the
dismantling of the steam pipelines, the deferred steam connection
income of RMB9,357,000 was reversed during the year (note 6).

FRERBRAERER R AEEEREFPHRUE -
RIFBEAEER  BERAEBRRAARE
9,357,000 E R F N (M 7E6) ©

Government grants represent the amounts received from
Shouguang City Finance Bureau and Linging City Finance Bureau
for the development of the production complex in Shouguang and
Linging, respectively.

BRH#HBIE AR B RRERREELFENEMm D
REFEHH B RSN BRRGHRE -
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2014
ZT—mF
RMB’000
ARETIT
Trade payables =) ANEN 132,582 113,801
Bills payables EREE 58,900 10,692
Total trade and bills payables B SRRk ENERRE 191,482 124,493
Advances from customers BEE8HR 112,486 51,813
Deposits HES 9,449 11,742
Sales commission HERE 2,126 2,358
Other tax payables H At pE R IE 30,794 22,676
Accrued expenses EFTE A 20,231 13,170
Payroll and welfare payables RS RER 1,639 6,709
Payable for construction and equipment BN R ERENK 198,640 230,328
Others Hih 3,315 2,320
378,680 341,116
570,162 465,609
Included in trade payables is an amount due to non-controlling BORNFBEERMNIEERRRERRIBARYE
interests of RMB96,142,000 (2014: RMB29,729,000) (note 31(iii)). 96,142,0007T(=F — 4 : AR#29,729,0007T)
(FFEE31 i) ©
As at 31 December 2015, bills payables are secured by bank RZE—AF+ZA=+—"H ENEED
acceptance bills of RMB2,000,000 (2014: RMB4,692,000) (note BIAAR#200000c(ZE—HF : AR
18(c)) and pledged bank deposits of RMB27,400,000 (2014: 4,692,0007T) (FI5E18(c)) KIERITHE A BHE R AR
RMB6,000,000) (note 20). 27,400,0007C (= F— 4 : A £ #6,000,0007T)
(B 5E20) B B AR TF RIEHE AR ©
The following is the ageing analysis for the trade and bills payables T RBRERREZENILENEZBROERR S
at the end of the reporting period: #
2014
—T—mF
RMB’000
ARETT
0-60 days TER1+H 149,000 77,520
61-90 days ~t—ZEA+H 16,456 22,963
Over 90 days N+EMRE 26,026 24,010

191,482 124,493
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The average credit period on purchases is 80 days (2014: 80 days).
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are paid within the credit time frame.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are mainly
denominated in RMB.

The Group offers quarters to the staff with the aim of promoting
long service with the Group. These quarters are constructed by the
Group and offered to staff for application on a periodic basis. Due
to the excess demand of staff quarters and the relatively substantial
construction costs involved, the staff is required to place housing
deposit to the Group. The Group utilises the amount received from
staff as general working capital.

The employee housing deposits are interest-free, unsecured and
repayable one month upon the return of the staff quarters by the
employee or termination of employment.

(@ Commitments for total future minimum lease
payments under a non-cancellable operating lease

RENTFHEEMANTA(ZZ—0OF : N+
B) - "EBEEHIEMBRERERBR - AR
BRNFREBEENRAESIA -

B RAMENFHNEREEZEUAREE -

AEBRBTRUES  §E< B TERERRE
AEE - FhEEAARERE  THHETH
o HIRBIHEEIENE - B RERREANE
HAAR - BTARAEEZNEERES - KNEE
MAKBETHMRIBERREEES -

BTFRERESDR2E  BEMERETIREMET
BEERIEIBRAR—EARNERE -

@ WEFTHFBEELEHENERREMR
ENFURIERER

2014

—E-F

RMB’000

ARBFT

No later than 1 year —FER 684 814
Later than 1 year and no later than —FHELEAFA

5 years 214 743

Later than 5 years hEZE 402 452

1,300 2,009
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(b) Commitments in respect of capital expenditure
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(b) BEABHIAIE

2014
—Z—OF
RMB’000
ARBTT
Authorised but not contracted for in ERERRRTH
respect of:
— property, plant and equipment - - BB MEE 6,061 101,668
- prepaid lease payments - ENHEER 38,160 38,160
44,221 139,828
Contracted but not provided for in EEENEES 3=
respect of:
— property, plant and equipment - - BERBRE 118,038 145,661

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 5 September
2007 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Board may grant options to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date on which the Share
Option Scheme is adopted. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of share capital of the Company in issue
from time to time.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, no options have been granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

AR TR R B (TR & D) HRER =F
ZHENATRBBN-BRREMERS  T28
MARRESRRABRESIRIER - RIFHBARER
B EFgURAERER (BEARRARANE
NAMER)REBEREARBEARTNKRND - B
Rergst BRI 2 B R T FRA - ATTER
IREE R B L AN A B e (R ] AL (B AR AT 81
B P B IR B MR TT e BB AR T AT AR B 1T ROAR (D
B LR - AR TSBEBARRNE D EITRAN
30% °

RIB-RFER-F-NE+-A=+—0  #E
RIBRE AT B DA -
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During the year, the Group entered into the following material related RAEE - AEBDEY NIEREERS ©
party transactions.
() Transactions with related parties () EHEFERETZRE
2014
—PE
RMB’000
ARETT
Purchase of electricity and steam from EE A EY ot -k IE el
non-controlling interests 100,041 68,331
Provision of staffing and staff messing MIFERR R SRR AN EIR
services to non-controlling interests & B TIKR RS 2,149 1,029

These transactions are conducted in accordance with their

respective contract prices.

(i) Key management compensation

ZEXHIREEZENAOERET -

(iy ETEEIERERREN

2014
—ZT Y
RMB’000
ARETFT

Short-term benefits
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

SRk
RIRIEFIFT SR

1,038
120

1,489
106

1,158

1,695

(i) Balances with a related party

(i) EEEAER WEERR

2014
—4F
RMB’000
ARETTT

Amount due from non-controlling interests

Amount due to non-controlling interests

R LS B 4% e e SR AR e O 3R IR 4,335
AN FE 4% i SR A e ) FRIR (96,142)

7,683
(29,729)

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and shall be settled

in accordance with the respective credit terms.

WAREEEH



ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &3 111

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3tE1 iRk izt

2014
—Z—OF
RMB’000
Assets BE AREFT
() Loans and receivables () EZFmEwR
Trade and other receivables excluding B 5 REMERZTRIETEMNR
prepayments and other tax receivables T EH Ath e U A7 18 352,816 338,268
Pledged bank deposits BERITER 37,916 6,000
Fixed deposits with maturity period over — AR EEHER
three months 290,000 430,000
Cash and cash equivalents R RIREEEY 298,075 184,568
978,807 958,836
(i)  Financial assets at fair value through (i) RAFEFABENCHEE
profit or loss
Futures contracts — held for trading HEAH—BIEEE 245 -
2014
—Z—OF
RMB’000
Liabilities a8E& AREFT
Other financial liabilities at TRESER AN S AR A Eo
amortised cost SRhAE
Borrowings (= 99,432 284,432
Trade and other payables excluding B 5 MEMERK
accruals (FEETEBBRIM 406,651 377,950
Employee housing deposits BETRERES 26,275 26,279

532,358 688,661
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2014
—Z—F
RMB’000
ARET T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R E A RRIIEE 159,121 159,121
Current assets REVEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i A =N E e 555,777 564,135
Prepayments SEEREN 376 354
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR 2EEY 3,892 2,008
560,045 566,492
Total assets EEHAE 719,166 725,613
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners AAREE ARLER
of the Company
Share capital B 532,656 532,656
Reserves (note) FHEICIES) 185,283 191,811
717,939 724,467
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities RENEE
Other payables HhFEAER 1,227 1,146
Total equity and liabilities EnkaEeE 719,166 725,613

AATNBBHARARERESTEN _T—R"F=A
T RHETHATREEE

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2016 and was signed on its
behalf.

Tian Qixiang Yu Yingquan
HER FER
Director Director

EF EBEE
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Note: Movement of the reserves of the Company MisE : AREIREEES
Share Special Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
B RE HSRIRE BARGRE RitER iy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBFT ARBETT AR®TT AREFT

As at 1 January 2014 RN-Z-mE—-F—H 201,704 108,651 16,730 (101,804) 225,281
Loss for the year FEEE - - - (1,857) (1,857)
2013 final dividend —E-ZFREKRE (31,882) - - - (31,882)
Issue of shares under scrip BEURAEEE

dividend scheme BEITIR D 269 - - - 269

As at 31 December 2014 RZE—NE+=A

and 1 January 2015 =t+—HRk-Z—1F
—A—H 170,091 108,651 16,730 (103,661) 191,811
Profit for the year FRAE - - - 26,139 26,139
2014 final dividend ZE-MERPRE (32,667) - - - (32,667)

As at 31 December 2015 R-ZZ—RF+=-A
=t+—A 137,424 108,651 16,730 (77,522) 185,283
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34 Subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 are as
follows:

34 B TE]
RZE—RAF+_A=+—HHNEEWB R AN
B -

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of ordinary shares
incorporation Principal activities Particulars of ordinary shares held held by
and kind of and place of issued share FrisL @R Al non-controlling
legal entity operation capital Direct Indirect interest (%)
FERRRES
MRS ERERER TEXHRCEHY BRIRAFE Hi B FrrEBREA (%)
Sourcestar Worldwide Inc. BVI, limited Investment holding, US$240 ordinary 100% - -
liability company Hong Kong shares
ERERRNE ERAR RERR FE 20ETEEER
China Starch Group Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding, HK$1 ordinary 100% - -
RERNERERAR liability company Hong Kong share
% BRLA RERR &8 TETHERR
Shandong Shouguang Juneng PRC, limited Manufacturing and sale Registered and - 100% -
Golden Corn Development liability company of comstarch, lysine paid up capital of
Co., Ltd. FE - ERAR and related products, PRC RMB480,000,000
WREKE#LTREEERAF TEREETARN BEE FMRERREARE
REEER F 480,000,000
Shouguang Golden Far East PRC, limited Research, development, Registered and - 100% -
Modified Starch Company liability company manufacture and sale paid up capital of
Limited HE - BRAR of modified starch 1US$9,600,000
SHERFEURNERLA and related products, PRC SR &I 2R
e FERBEZURHR 9,600,000% 7
HBER &
Linging Deneng Golden Com PRC, limited Manufacturing and sale Registered and - 91% 9%
Bio Limited liability company of cornstarch, starch- paid up capital of
s TAEMERDA HE - BRAR based swestener RMB200,000,000
and related products, PRC 51 i IR AR
EEREETARG  BHE 200,000,000

RiEHER - FH
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(A) Directors’ emoluments A E=#E
The remuneration of every director is set out below: EEEMHFMEI AT

Employer’s
contribution to
a retirement
Fees Salary benefit scheme Total
BERRKER
ue & EEHMAR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT

2015 —E-1E

Executive directors: WITEE:

Mr. Tian Qixiang HER - 306 - 306

Mr. Gao Shijun SittE - 286 60 346

Mr. Liu Xianggang 25 - 221 60 281

Mr. Yu Yingguan FHER - 225 - 225

Independent non-executive BUFNTES

directors:

Mr. Chen Zhijun REE 50 - - 50

Mr. Sun Mingdao %HE 50 - - 50

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken SEE 88 - - 88

Total &5t 188 1,038 120 1,346

2014 —E-mE

Executive directors: HITEE:

Mr. Tian Qixiang HER - 516 - 516

Mr. Gao Shijun SitE - 396 53 449

Mr. Liu Xianggang EIE] - 277 53 330

Mr. Yu Yingquan FER - 300 - 300

Independent non-executive BUFTES

directors:

Mr. Chen Zhijun REE 50 - - 50

Mr. Sun Mingdao %HE 50 - - 50

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REH 87 - - 87

Total 187 1,489 106 1,782
During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no HE-_T—AFEAR-FT—WF+_A=+—
emoluments have been paid by the Group as an inducement HIEFE  AEEHBEXNME - (ERKS
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss DA SN AZS £ B I 1) 2 ) Sk /E 3 2R R B L

of office. K)#E{E -
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(B) Directors’ retirement benefits (B) EEMRAREF
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the BHE T —AFER-FT—WNF+_A=+—
retirement benefits paid to Mr. Gao Shijun and Mr. Liu HIEFE » MettELE RAKALESLS
Xianggang are related to their services as a director of the BRI A T B AR AT N R SR B A =]
company and its subsidiaries. EFAA -

(C) Directors’ material interests in transactions, C) EENXS REHIESHNHNEKRRE
arrangements or contracts =
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in RARGET VEAKEEEBHERE - ARQA
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a ESHEEAHERETFHREEANER - B
party and in which a director of the Company had a material FRIFREMEBDIAERINORS - L8
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of REHK)

the year or at any time during the year.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the rEBLEAGERFALH  =R2(ZF—NF : [
Group, three (2014: four) were directors of the Company whose B)RARRNES  BENWES RIS
emoluments are reflected in the analysis in note 35. The emoluments 25 - BTME(ZE—UF : —B)meFALTH
of the remaining two (2014: one) individuals were as follows: BemT
2014
—T—NF
RMB’000
ARETT
Salaries e 1,068 649
Contribution to a pension scheme BRI S 5T &R 29 13
1,097 662
The emolument was within RMB1,000,000. HFERBEEARE1,000,0007C AR ©
During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no REEZE_T-—AFR-_ZT—NF+_A=+—Hi:
emoluments had been paid by the Group to any of the five highest FE  AEESERNLESSHA LTINS - F
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group ARSI AR SN AZR &R B 1) BB Sk VE 7R A R B AL

or as compensation for loss of office. HIfR1E -
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